
 

Page Numbers  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE FLORIN RESOURCE 
 CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday, November 16, 2021 
 

 6:00 PM 
 

Compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5 
 

Public records, including writings related to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the 
Florin Resources Conservation District that are distributed less than 72 hours before the meeting, are 
available by email request. In addition, such writings may be posted, whenever possible, on the Elk Grove 
Water District website at www.egwd.org.         
    
The Board will discuss all items on the agenda and may take action on any item listed as an “Action” item.  
The Board may discuss items that do not appear on the agenda, but will not act on those items unless there 
is a need to take immediate action and the Board determines by a two-thirds (2/3) vote that the need for 
action arose after posting of the agenda. 
  
If necessary, the Meeting will be adjourned to Closed Session to discuss items on the agenda listed under 
“Closed Session.” At the conclusion of the Closed Session, the meeting will reconvene to “Open Session.” 
 
Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the Ralph M. Brown Act’s requirements for teleconferencing during 
the COVID-19 pandemic provided that notice and accessibility requirements are met, the public members are 
allowed to observe and address the legislative body at the meeting, and that a legislative body of a local 
agency has a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for 
individuals with disabilities, as specified: 
 

A.  Accessibility 
Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/84731009617         Meeting ID: 847 3100 9617 

 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)                                       +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)                                         +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 253 215 8782 US                                                          +1 301 715 8592 US 
 

B. Receiving Public Comment 
Please press Star+9 (*9) to raise your hand for Public Comment – Members of the audience may 
comment on matters that are not included on the agenda.  Each person will be allowed three (3) 
minutes, or less if a large number of requests are received on a particular subject. No action may 
be taken on a matter raised under "Public Comment" until the matter has been specifically 
included on an agenda as an action item.  Items listed on the agenda will be opened for public 
comment as they are considered by the Board of Directors. 
 

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Public Comment  

            
1. Future Florin Resource Conservation District Board Meetings by 

Teleconference  
(Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary) 

 

Associate Director Comment 
 
Public Comment 

3-5 
 



 
Recommended Action: Consider finding by a majority vote under Gov. Code § 

54953, subd. (e)(1)(B) that as a result of the COVID-19 
emergency: (i) meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and 
(ii) the meeting is authorized to be held by teleconference 
pursuant to Gov. Code § 54953, subd. (e)(1)(C).    

 

2. Proclamations and Announcements 
 

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment 
 

 

3. Consent Calendar                    
(Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary and Patrick Lee, Treasurer)  

a. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of October 19, 2021 
b. Accounts Payable Check History – October 2021 
c. Board and Employee Expense/Reimbursements – October 2021 
d. Active Accounts – October 2021 
e. Bond Covenant Status for FY 2021-22 – October 2021 
f. Year to Date Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget – October 2021 
g. CASH - Detail Schedule of Investments– October 2021 
h. Consultants Expenses – October 2021 
i. Major Capital Improvement Projects – October 2021 
  

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent 
Calendar items a – i.   

 

6-7 
 

8-11 
12-15 

16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
 

4. Florin Resource Conservation District Reserve and Capital Investment Policy 
(Patrick Lee, Finance Manager) 
  

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment    
 

Recommended Action: Provide direction on potential changes to the Reserve 
and Capital Investment Policy. 

 

23-39 

5. General Manager’s Report 
(Bruce Kamilos, General Manager) 
 

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment    
 

40-41 

6. Elk Grove Water District Operations Report – October 2021  
 (Bruce Kamilos, General Manager) 
  

Associate Director Comment 
 

Public Comment   
 

42-91 

7. Directors Comments  
 

 

Adjourn to Regular Meeting – December 21, 2021        

Page Numbers  

2



 
AGENDA ITEM No. 1 

November 16, 2021 
 
 
TO:   Chair and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM:  Stefani Phillips, Human Resources Administrator/Board Secretary 
 
SUBJECT: FUTURE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD 

MEETINGS BY TELECONFERENCE  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is being presented to the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of 
Directors to consider finding by a majority vote under Gov. Code § 54953, subd. (e)(1)(B) 
that as a result of the COVID-19 emergency: (i) meeting in person would present imminent 
risks to the health or safety of attendees; and (ii) the meeting is authorized to be held by 
teleconference pursuant to Gov. Code § 54953, subd. (e)(1)(C).    
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors (Board) has 
conducted board meetings by teleconference since April 21, 2020.  On September 30, 
2021, Executive Order No. N-29-20, which allows for board meetings to be conducted by 
teleconference expired. On September 15, 2021, the Governor passed Assembly Bill (AB) 
361 extending the allowance of public board meetings to be conducted by teleconference 
effective October 1, 2021 through December 31, 2023.  At the October regular board 
meeting, the Board voted that meeting continue to be conducted by teleconference in 
accordance with AB-361 and concurred that this item be brought back each month for 
action.  
 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 which allows 
public agencies to hold board meetings by teleconference without violating the Brown Act.   
On April 21, 2020, the Board began conducting board meetings by teleconference. On 
July 2, 2020, Governor Newsom extended Executive Order No. N-29-20 through 
September 30, 2021, allowing the continuation of public board meetings conducted by 
teleconference. AB-361 was introduced to continue allowing board meetings by 
teleconference and has an end date of December 31, 2023. At the September regular 
board meeting, the Board concurred that all meetings continue to be conducted by 
teleconference in accordance with AB-361.  
 

3



November 16, 2021 
 
FUTURE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD MEETINGS BY 
TELECONFERENCE    
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 1 

In light of the Governor’s declaration that a state of emergency exists due to the incidence 
and spread of the novel coronavirus, and the pandemic caused by the resulting disease 
COVID-19, the Board should consider whether meeting in person would present imminent 
risks to the health or safety of meeting attendees. 
  
The Centers for Disease Control indicates that COVID-19 is a highly transmissible virus 
that is spread when an infected person breathes out droplets and very small particles that 
contain the virus, and such droplets and particles are breathed in by other people. Since 
June of 2021, a more infectious variant of the virus, known as the Delta Variant, has 
emerged and now accounts for the vast majority of COVID-19 cases. 
 
Present Situation 
 
Although effective vaccines have been approved by the U. S. Food and Drug 
Administration for emergency use, vaccination rates are slow and have not yet reached 
a point to significantly control community transmission. As of November 9, 2021, only 
73.5% of Californian’s who are eligible to be vaccinated are fully vaccinated.  
 
Those who become infected with COVID-19 are at risk of serious illness and death. As of 
November 9, 2021, over 776,389 Americans have died from the virus. Many more have 
been hospitalized with serious illness. Currently, in Sacramento County, 158 people are 
hospitalized with COVID-19. Additionally, 83% of intensive care beds are in use.  
 
Conducting meetings by teleconference would directly reduce the risk of transmission 
among meeting attendees, including members of the public and staff, which has the 
ancillary effect of reducing risk of serious illness and death, as well as reducing 
community spread of the virus.  
 
To meet by teleconference under AB-361, local agency boards must include an initial 
agenda item, such as this, to consider finding that the circumstances allowing a 
teleconference meeting under AB-361 exist. At the October regular board meeting, the 
Board reviewed this commencing agenda item and voted that meetings continue to be 
conducted by teleconference in accordance with AB-361. They also concurred that this 
item be brought back each month for action.  
 
If the authorization to meet by teleconference is not approved by a majority vote, then the 
meeting will adjourn after this item and the remaining agenda items will be rescheduled 
to a future in-person meeting.  
 

4



November 16, 2021 
 
FUTURE FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT BOARD MEETINGS BY 
TELECONFERENCE    
Page 3 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 1 

If authorization to meet by teleconference is approved by a majority vote, staff will 
continue to bring a re-authorization to the Board as an action item, at every regular board 
meeting, until such time the Board determines meetings will continue in person.  
 
Staff recommends that the Board consider finding by a majority vote, that as a result of 
the COVID-19 emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health 
or safety of attendees, and the meeting should be held by teleconference as authorized 
by subdivision (e)(1)(C) of section 54943 of the Government Code.    
  
 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
  
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.   
 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
This item conforms with Strategic Goal No. 1, Governance and Customer Engagement, 
of the Strategic Plan 2020-2025 
 
 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
There is no direct financial impact associated with this report. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
 
STEFANI PHILLIPS,  
HUMAN RESOURCES ADMINISTRATOR/BOARD SECRETARY 

5



November 16, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

 
TO:  Chair and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary and Patrick Lee, Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors 
approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent Calendar items a – i. 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Consent Calendar items a – i are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda.  
 
By this action, the Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of Directors will 
approve FRCD Consent Calendar items a – i. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
Consent Calendar items are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda.    
 
 
Present Situation 
 
Consent Calendar items a – i are standing items on the Regular Board Meeting agenda. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report.  
 
  
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
This item conforms to the FRCD/Elk Grove Water District 2020-2025 Strategic Plan. The 
monthly Consent Calendar report provides transparency, which aligns with Goal No. 1, 
Governance and Customer Engagement, of the Strategic Plan 2020-2025. 

6



November 16, 2021 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this report.   
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
    
 

                                                                                     
STEFANI PHILLIPS  
BOARD SECRETARY  
 
And  
 
 
 
PATRICK LEE 
TREASURER 
 
Attachments 

7



               

 
 
MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                               MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR October 19, 2021 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Tuesday, October 19, 2021 
 

The regular meeting of the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors was called to order at 
6:00 p.m. by Chair Sophia Scherman via Zoom. 
 

Call to Order, Roll Call, and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Directors Present: Sophia Scherman, Tom Nelson, Bob Gray, Lisa Medina, Elliot Mulberg 
Directors Absent:    None 
Staff Present:             Bruce Kamilos, General Manager; Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Treasurer; 

Stefani Phillips, Human Resources Administrator/Board Secretary; Donella 
Murillo, Finance Supervisor; Travis Franklin, Program Manager; Amber 
Kavert, Administrative Assistant II (Confidential) 

Staff Absent:  None 
Associate Directors Present:  Paul Lindsay 
Associate Directors Absent: None 
General Counsel Present: Ren Nosky, JRG Attorneys at Law  
Consultants Present: Mitesh Desai, Badawi & Associates 
Public Present:  Pam Tobin, Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA); Cathy Green, 

ACWA 
 

Public Comment 
Nothing to report.  
 

1. Future Florin Resource Conservation District Board Meeting by Teleconference 
General Manager Bruce Kamilos presented the item to the Florin Resource Conservation District 
(District) Board of Directors (Board).  
 
In summary, the Board has conducted board meetings by teleconference since April 21, 2020.  On 
September 30, 2021, Executive Order No. N-29-20, which allows for board meetings to be conducted 
by teleconference expired. On September 15, 2021, the Governor passed Assembly Bill (AB) 361 
extending the allowance of public board meetings to be conducted by teleconference effective October 
1, 2021, through December 31, 2023.  At the September regular board meeting, the Board concurred 
that meetings continue to be conducted by teleconference in accordance with AB-361. To meet by 
teleconference under AB-361, local agency boards must include an initial agenda item to consider 
finding that the circumstances allowing a teleconference meeting under AB-361 exist. After the initial 
meeting, if 30 days or less have elapsed since the last meeting, an agenda item should be included 
to renew the determination that meeting in person presents health risks. However, if more than 30 
days have passed, an initial agenda item must be included to re-authorize meeting by teleconference 
under AB-361. 

  
MSC (Nelson/Medina) to consider finding by a majority vote under Gov. Code § 54953, subd. (e)(1)(B) 
that as a result of the COVID-19 emergency: (i) meeting in person would present imminent risks to 
the health or safety of attendees; and (ii) the meeting is authorized to be held by teleconference 
pursuant to Gov. Code § 54953, subd. (e)(1)(C). 5/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, Mulberg, Nelson and 
Scherman.  

 
2. Proclamations and Announcements 

Nothing to report. 
 
 
 
 

8

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#   a



2 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                                        MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR October 19, 2021 

  

3. Consent Calendar 
a. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of September 21, 2021 
b. Accounts Payable Check History – September 2021 
c. Board and Employee Expense/Reimbursements – September 2021 
d. Active Accounts – September 2021 
e. Bond Covenant Status for FY 2021-22 – September 2021 
f. Year to Date Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget – September 2021 
g. Cash Accounts – September 2021 
h. Consultants Expenses – September 2021 
i. Major Capital Improvement Projects – September 2021  

 

Vice-Chair Tom Nelson pull item b. 
 
Vice-Chair Nelson inquired about a check regarding a public notice for unclaimed funds. Finance 
Manager Patrick Lee explained the District has $16,000 in unclaimed funds, as well as the process 
the District must go through based on its Unclaimed Funds Policy, and that the public notice was to 
inform customers of the unclaimed funds in the Elk Grove Citizen. 
     
MSC (Medina/Nelson) to approve Florin Resource Conservation District Consent Calendar items a-i. 
5/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, Mulberg, Nelson and Scherman.  

 

4. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2021, and 
2020 
Mr. Lee presented the item to the Board before introducing Mitesh Desai from Badawi & Associates. 
Mr. Desai presented a PowerPoint on the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), 
explaining Badawi & Associates findings.  
 
Director Elliot Mulberg congratulated staff on getting the CAFR done in a timely manner. 
 
MSC (Mulberg/Medina) to accept and file the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal 
Years ending June 30, 2021, and 2020. 5/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, Mulberg, Nelson and Scherman. 

 

5. Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2021-22 Quarterly Operating Budget Status 
Report. 
Mr. Lee provided information on the item.  
 

In summary, Revenues collected through the first quarter of Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 total $4,889,893 
which is 31.11% of the $15,716,093 annual budget. The revenues are $135,837 or 2.70% below the 
same quarter of the prior year due to an overall reduction in consumption for the months of July and 
August 2021. 

 

6. Elk Grove Water District Fiscal Year 2021-11 Quarterly Capital Reserve Status Report 
 Mr. Lee provided information on the item.  
 

In summary, through the first quarter of FY 2021-22, the District expended $729,849 for capital 
projects, leaving a remaining total reserve balance on September 30, 2021, of $18,409,633. 

 

7. Support for Association of California Water Agencies President and Vice President 
Mr. Kamilos presented the item to the Board. 
 
In summary, every two (2) years, the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) holds an 
election among its membership for ACWA President and Vice President. Elections for these offices 
are scheduled for December 1, 2021, during the ACWA 2021 Fall Conference & Exhibition. At the 

9



3 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                                        MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR October 19, 2021 

  

board meeting on September 21, 2021, the Board agreed to support Pam Tobin and Cathy Green for 
these offices. 
 
Pam Tobin and Cathy Green, running for ACWA President and Vice-president respectively, both 
spoke for their candidacy. 

 
MSC (Medina/Nelson) to adopt Resolution No. 10.19.21.01, supporting Pam Tobin as a candidate for 
Association of California Water Agencies President. 5/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, Mulberg Nelson and 
Scherman.  
 
MSC (Scherman/Nelson) to adopt Resolution No.10.19.21.02, supporting Cathy Green as a candidate 
for Association of California Water Agencies Vice President. 5/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, Mulberg Nelson 
and Scherman.  

  

8. Selection of Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission Special District 
Commissioner and Alternate Special District Commissioner 
Mr. Kamilos presented the item to the Board.  
 
In summary, Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) is soliciting selection of one 
(1) Special District Commissioner (Commissioner) and one (1) Special District Alternate 
Commissioner (Alternate) for the term of January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2025, with a 
deadline for ballots being November 17, 2021. No District Board members had interest in serving 
LAFCo and therefore did not nominate anyone from the District. There are three (3) candidates 
running for Commissioner and two (2) candidates running for Alternate. 
 
The Board voted on their selection for Commissioner and Alternate. 
 
MSC (Nelson/Mulberg) to select Gay Jones to serve as Sacramento Local Agency Formation 
Commission Special District Commissioner for Office No. 7. 5/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, Mulberg Nelson 
and Scherman.  
 
MSC (Mulberg/Scherman) to select Charlea Moore to serve as Sacramento Local Agency Formation 
Commission Alternate Special District Commissioner for Office No. 6 & 7. 5/0: Ayes: Gray, Medina, 
Mulberg Nelson and Scherman.  
 

9. Groundwater Sustainability Plan Briefing  
Mr. Kamilos presented the item to the Board. 
 
In summary, the 2014 Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) established that locally 
formed Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSA) develop and implement Groundwater 
Sustainability Plans (GSP) to ensure groundwater resources throughout California are sustainably 
managed. The GSP that has been developed for the South American Subbasin (SASb) from which 
the Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) pumps groundwater is nearly completed and is due into the 
Department of Water Resources by January 31, 2022. Mr. Kamilos provided information on what the 
SASb GSP entails. 

 

10. General Manager’s Report 
Mr. Kamilos presented the item to the Board.  
 
Mr. Lee updated the Board on the California Water Arrearage Payment Program, stating he is 
confident the District will be receiving the $246,000 requested. He also informed the Board that 
Governor Newsom had signed Senate Bill (SB) 155, which extends and expands the water shut-off 
moratorium until at least December 31, 2021, with the potential to extend longer. 

10



4 

 

MSC = Motion, Second, Carried.                                                        MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FRCD FOR October 19, 2021 

  

Mr. Kamilos provided a drought and conservation update to the Board, stating the District is stable as 
of now and will be monitoring monthly.  He also mentioned that he will be attending a general manager 
drought conference on November 8, 2021. 
 

11. Legislative Matters and Potential Direction to Staff 
Mr. Franklin updated the Board on legislative matters. 
 

12. Elk Grove Water District Operations Report – September 2021 
Mr. Kamilos presented the EGWD Operations Report – September 2021 to the Board.  

 

13. Directors Comments   
Director Mulberg commented that he received an email that he was being reappointed to the California 
Special Districts Association Legislative Committee and the Bylaws Committee. 
 
Vice-Chair Nelson explained he will be absent at the next meeting. 
 

Adjourn to Regular Board Meeting on November 16, 2021. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Stefani Phillips 
Stefani Phillips, Board Secretary 
 
AK/SP 

11



E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n

W
o

rk
e

rs
' C

o
m

p
e

n
s
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 -
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
1

M
e

d
ic

a
l 
B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 -
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

2
1

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
F

lo
w

 T
ra

n
s
m

it
te

r

D
a

ily
 T

a
s
k
s
/H

e
lp

 T
ic

k
e

ts

(2
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 J
a

n
it
o

ri
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
B

ill
in

g
 &

 P
o

s
ta

g
e

 f
o

r 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
2

1

P
ro

je
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

 N
e

w
 A

D
M

IN
 B

u
ild

in
g

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

  
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 -
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 C

re
w

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

  
- 

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
s
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

B
o

o
t 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t 

E
G

W
D

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 B

u
ild

in
g

 T
e

n
a

n
t 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

(2
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

  
- 

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t/
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 C

re
w

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 -
 O

P
S

 V
e

h
ic

le
s
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 
R

e
n

ta
l 
- 

B
a

c
k
h

o
e

 -
 D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 C

re
w

(2
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

  
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

*A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 T

a
x
 B

ill
 

*A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 T

a
x
 B

ill
 

*A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 T

a
x
 B

ill
 

*A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 T

a
x
 B

ill
  
- 

9
8

2
9

 W
a

te
rm

a
n

 R
o

a
d

*A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 T

a
x
 B

ill
 

*A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 T

a
x
 B

ill
 

*A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 T

a
x
 B

ill
 

(2
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 -
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

R
e

n
ta

l 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

R
e

n
ta

l 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 M
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 2

0
2

0

C
h

e
c

k
 H

is
to

ry
 R

e
p

o
rt

1
0

/1
/2

0
2

1
 t

o
 1

0
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

C
h

e
c

k

N
u

m
b

e
r

C
h

e
c

k

D
a

te

V
e

n
d

o
r

N
u

m
b

e
r

N
a

m
e

C
h

e
c

k
 

A
m

o
u

n
t

0
5

3
8

6
2

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
A

C
W

A
 J

P
A

C
W

A
 J

P
IA

1
9

,3
6

2
.4

1

0
5

3
8

6
3

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
A

C
W

A
J
P

I
 C

B
&

T
/ 

A
C

W
A

-J
P

IA
6

8
,4

6
9

.5
2

0
5

3
8

6
4

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
A

Q
U

A
A

Q
U

A
 S

IE
R

R
A

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
S

, 
IN

C
2

,9
6

6
.1

1

0
5

3
8

6
5

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
B

A
Y

 A
L

A
B

A
Y

 A
L

A
R

M
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

1
5

1
.2

9

0
5

3
8

6
6

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
B

E
N

 R
E

S
B

E
N

E
F

IT
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
, 

IN
C

1
2

5
.0

0

0
5

3
8

6
7

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
B

G
 S

O
L

U
S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S
 B

Y
 B

G
 I

N
C

.
1

1
,2

2
7

.5
0

0
5

3
8

6
8

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

H
E

C
K

 P
C

H
E

C
K

 P
R

O
C

E
S

S
O

R
S

, 
IN

C
3

3
2

.0
0

0
5

3
8

6
9

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

IN
T

A
S

2
C

IN
T

A
S

1
5

7
.9

2

0
5

3
8

7
0

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

O
V

E
R

 A
C

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 N

O
R

T
H

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

, 
IN

C
1

,6
2

0
.0

0

0
5

3
8

7
1

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
 R

C
I

R
IV

E
R

 C
IT

Y
 I

N
V

E
S

T
O

R
S

 L
L

C
9

1
.8

7

0
5

3
8

7
2

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
F

 A
W

A
A

N
G

E
L

A
 W

A
D

E
3

8
0

.3
3

0
5

3
8

7
3

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
F

 E
N

E
E

D
IT

H
 N

E
E

L
Y

5
0

.2
7

0
5

3
8

7
4

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
F

 F
N

F
ID

E
L

IT
Y

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 T

IT
L

E
1

8
4

.2
2

0
5

3
8

7
5

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
F

 G
L

A
G

A
R

Y
 L

A
R

S
O

N
5

.4
1

0
5

3
8

7
6

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
F

 J
H

O
J
A

S
O

N
 H

O
W

A
R

D
3

2
5

.5
0

0
5

3
8

7
7

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
F

 L
E

N
L

E
N

N
A

R
 H

O
M

E
S

 C
A

, 
IN

C
3

.9
5

0
5

3
8

7
8

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
F

 L
E

N
L

E
N

N
A

R
 H

O
M

E
S

 C
A

, 
IN

C
6

4
.9

9

0
5

3
8

7
9

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
F

 M
M

R
M

&
M

 R
E

A
L

 E
S

T
A

T
E

1
,8

3
3

.4
2

0
5

3
8

8
0

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
C

R
F

A
N

G
U

A
N

N
 N

G
U

Y
E

N
1

0
.3

7

0
5

3
8

8
1

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
D

A
T

A
P

R
O

D
A

T
A

P
R

O
S

E
 L

L
C

6
,1

4
2

.3
4

0
5

3
8

8
2

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
E

A
R

L
 C

O
E

A
R

L
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 C
O

.,
 L

L
C

2
,0

3
6

.2
5

0
5

3
8

8
3

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
F

E
R

G
U

S
F

E
R

G
U

S
O

N
 W

A
T

E
R

W
O

R
K

S
 #

1
4

2
3

5
8

3
.2

5

0
5

3
8

8
4

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
H

O
L

T
H

O
L

T
 O

F
 C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
4

6
4

.9
2

0
5

3
8

8
5

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
IC

O
N

IX
IC

O
N

IX
 W

A
T

E
R

W
O

R
K

S
 (

U
S

) 
IN

C
.

4
,3

2
6

.1
8

0
5

3
8

8
6

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
J
A

Y
S

J
A

Y
'S

 T
R

U
C

K
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
1

,8
3

0
.0

0

0
5

3
8

8
7

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
J
M

E
N

D
O

Z
J
O

S
E

 M
E

N
D

O
Z

A
3

5
0

.0
0

0
5

3
8

8
8

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
M

F
D

B
 A

C
M

F
D

B
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

 I
N

C
.

2
3

,5
0

0
.0

0

0
5

3
8

8
9

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
O

L
D

 T
O

W
O

L
D

 T
O

W
N

 E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

 
7

5
.0

0

0
5

3
8

9
0

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
P

A
C

E
P

A
C

E
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 C

O
R

P
3

,2
3

5
.3

9

0
5

3
8

9
1

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
R

A
D

IA
L

R
A

D
IA

L
 T

IR
E

 O
F

 E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

4
8

9
.9

5

0
5

3
8

9
2

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
R

D
O

 E
Q

U
R

D
O

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 C
O

.
4

5
5

.6
0

0
5

3
8

9
3

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
R

E
P

U
B

L
I

R
E

P
U

B
L

IC
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 #
9

2
2

1
,9

9
0

.8
2

0
5

3
8

9
4

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
R

IV
E

R
C

I
R

IV
E

R
 C

IT
Y

 R
E

N
T

A
L

S
1

,4
5

0
.0

0

0
5

3
8

9
5

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
R

O
O

C
O

R
O

O
C

O
 R

E
N

T
S

5
,2

3
8

.0
0

0
5

3
8

9
6

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

A
C

 T
A

X
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
1

0
0

.0
0

0
5

3
8

9
7

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

A
C

 T
A

X
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
1

0
0

.0
0

0
5

3
8

9
8

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

A
C

 T
A

X
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
1

0
0

.0
0

0
5

3
8

9
9

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

A
C

 T
A

X
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
2

,4
3

4
.6

4

0
5

3
9

0
0

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

A
C

 T
A

X
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
1

0
0

.0
0

0
5

3
9

0
1

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

A
C

 T
A

X
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
1

0
0

.0
0

0
5

3
9

0
2

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

A
C

 T
A

X
S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
1

0
0

.0
0

0
5

3
9

0
3

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

IE
R

R
A

S
IE

R
R

A
 O

F
F

IC
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S
3

1
2

.9
1

0
5

3
9

0
4

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

M
U

D
S

M
U

D
6

1
7

.8
1

0
5

3
9

0
5

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
S

U
M

M
IT

A
IR

 W
O

R
K

S
 I

N
C

1
6

9
.0

0

0
5

3
9

0
6

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
T

E
IC

H
 A

T
E

IC
H

E
R

T
 A

G
G

R
E

G
A

T
E

S
1

,4
6

5
.5

1

0
5

3
9

0
7

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
T

R
E

N
C

H
T

R
E

N
C

H
 P

L
A

T
E

 R
E

N
T

A
L

 C
O

1
,2

3
1

.2
0

0
5

3
9

0
8

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
T

R
E

N
C

H
T

R
E

N
C

H
 P

L
A

T
E

 R
E

N
T

A
L

 C
O

3
9

8
.0

9

0
5

3
9

0
9

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
U

N
IT

E
D

U
N

IT
E

D
 S

IT
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

,0
4

7
.7

8

0
5

3
9

1
0

1
0

/6
/2

0
2

1
Y

O
L

 U
N

D
Y

O
L

A
N

D
A

 U
N

D
E

R
W

O
O

D
1

,6
5

0
.0

0

12

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#   b



*2
0

2
2

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 D

u
e

s

2
0

2
1

 A
p

p
le

 i
P

a
d

 P
ro

 -
 U

ti
lit

y
 C

re
w

F
la

g
g

e
rs

 -
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

E
th

e
rn

e
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

/P
h

o
n

e
s
-M

O
C

/A
D

M
IN

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
C

W
A

 2
0

2
1

 F
a

ll 
C

o
n

f 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 (

B
ru

c
e

) 
(S

o
p

h
ia

),
 M

e
a

l,
 R

W
A

 C
e

le
b

ra
ti
o

n
, 
S

o
ft

w
a

re
, 
M

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

, 
S

o
ft

w
a

re
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s

A
C

W
A

 2
0

2
1

 F
a

ll 
C

o
n

f 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 (

S
te

fa
n

i)
 (

A
m

b
e

r)
, 
S

to
ra

g
e

, 
S

o
ft

w
a

re
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 

*A
n

n
u

a
l 
C

A
-N

V
 A

W
W

A
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l,
 M

a
te

ri
a

ls
, 
P

a
rt

s
 f

o
r 

C
lo

r-
T

e
c
 M

a
c
h

in
e

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

R
e

n
t 
- 

9
2

5
7

 E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

 B
lv

d
.

F
u

e
l

* 
A

u
to

 a
n

d
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
L

ia
b

ili
ty

 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

L
e

g
a

l 
- 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

2
1

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
A

d
v
e

rt
is

e
m

e
n

t

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

H
o

t 
T

a
p

 V
a

lv
e

 P
ro

je
c
t 
- 

8
" 

A
C

P
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 C

o
ld

-W
a

te
r 

L
in

e
 -

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

V
a

lv
e

 I
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 a

t 
M

a
rv

e
l 
S

h
o

p
p

in
g

 C
e

n
te

r 
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

T
e

n
a

n
t 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
9

8
2

9
 W

a
te

rm
a

n
 R

o
a

d
 -

 P
la

n
 R

e
v
ie

w
 F

e
e

(2
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

  
- 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 C

re
w

D
a

ily
 T

a
s
k
s
/H

e
lp

 T
ic

k
e

ts

S
a

m
p

lin
g

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

F
la

t 
S

a
w

in
g

 -
 K

e
ls

e
y
 D

ri
v
e

 -
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

0
5

3
9

1
1

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

A
C

W
A

 3
A

C
W

A
1

9
,2

2
5

.0
0

0
5

3
9

1
2

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

A
M

A
Z

O
N

A
M

A
Z

O
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

,1
2

3
.4

7

0
5

3
9

1
3

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
H

E
C

K
 P

C
H

E
C

K
 P

R
O

C
E

S
S

O
R

S
, 

IN
C

3
3

0
.4

0

0
5

3
9

1
4

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
IT

Y
 R

I
C

IT
Y

 R
IS

E
, 

L
L

C
4

,7
2

3
.5

0

0
5

3
9

1
5

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
O

N
S

O
L

I
C

O
N

S
O

L
ID

A
T

E
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

1
,2

9
9

.3
9

0
5

3
9

1
6

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
P

S
C

O
O

P
E

R
A

T
IV

E
 P

E
R

S
O

N
N

A
L

 
1

8
4

.0
0

0
5

3
9

1
7

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
R

 J
ID

O
J
IN

K
Y

 D
O

L
A

R
1

8
0

.8
2

0
5

3
9

1
8

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
R

 V
S

S
V

S
S

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

1
,5

2
2

.7
2

0
5

3
9

1
9

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 C

S
M

C
H

R
IS

 S
M

IT
H

1
4

1
.6

5

0
5

3
9

2
0

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 J

L
D

J
E

F
F

R
E

Y
 L

. 
D

A
W

K
IN

S
, 

S
R

.
3

2
4

.2
0

0
5

3
9

2
1

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 K

C
O

K
IM

 C
O

R
N

IS
H

2
2

6
.3

5

0
5

3
9

2
2

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 M

B
A

M
O

H
A

M
M

E
D

 B
A

B
A

R
2

9
0

.2
1

0
5

3
9

2
3

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 N

H
U

N
A

U
S

H
A

D
 N

U
S

S
E

IN
1

,5
9

1
.7

2

0
5

3
9

2
4

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 S

C
O

S
A

U
R

E
N

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
1

,3
2

9
.2

1

0
5

3
9

2
5

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
S

 B
K

C
A

R
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1

,9
4

3
.4

0

0
5

3
9

2
6

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
S

 D
M

C
A

R
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
4

2
6

.8
5

0
5

3
9

2
7

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
S

 S
P

C
A

R
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
2

,2
7

2
.6

4

0
5

3
9

2
8

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

C
S

 S
S

C
A

R
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
8

7
3

.4
3

0
5

3
9

2
9

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

E
G

 M
A

S
E

L
K

 G
R

O
V

E
 M

A
S

O
N

IC
  

L
O

D
G

E
 #

1
7

3
6

,0
0

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

3
0

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

IN
T

 S
T

A
IN

T
E

R
S

T
A

T
E

 O
IL

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
1

,7
5

0
.3

5

0
5

3
9

3
1

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

J
P

IA
A

C
W

A
/J

O
IN

T
 P

O
W

E
R

S
 I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

 
6

3
,3

6
8

.0
0

0
5

3
9

3
2

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

J
R

G
J
R

G
 A

T
T

O
R

N
E

Y
S

, 
L

L
P

1
,7

3
4

.0
0

0
5

3
9

3
3

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

M
C

C
L

A
T

M
C

C
L

A
T

C
H

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 L
L

C
3

7
5

.0
0

0
5

3
9

3
4

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 5

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
2

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

3
5

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 5

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
2

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

3
6

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 5

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
2

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

3
7

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 5

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
2

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

3
8

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

6
,9

4
4

.0
4

0
5

3
9

3
9

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

1
,5

6
8

.6
4

0
5

3
9

4
0

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

1
,7

6
8

.8
8

0
5

3
9

4
1

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

2
1

,7
3

7
.5

9

0
5

3
9

4
2

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

1
,8

5
3

.7
1

0
5

3
9

4
3

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

4
5

.5
8

0
5

3
9

4
4

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

8
,2

4
3

.9
0

0
5

3
9

4
5

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
M

U
D

S
M

U
D

2
,4

9
3

.6
2

0
5

3
9

4
6

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

S
U

M
M

IT
A

IR
 W

O
R

K
S

 I
N

C
2

2
4

.0
0

0
5

3
9

4
7

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

T
A

P
 M

A
S

T
A

P
 M

A
S

T
E

R
S

, 
IN

C
.

4
,9

9
6

.0
0

0
5

3
9

4
8

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

U
S

A
B

L
U

E
U

S
A

B
lu

e
B

o
o

k
1

6
7

.0
1

0
5

3
9

4
9

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
L

E
S

S
5

0
2

.7
3

0
5

3
9

5
0

1
0

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

T
A

P
 M

A
S

T
A

P
 M

A
S

T
E

R
S

, 
IN

C
.

1
0

,6
6

4
.0

0

0
5

3
9

5
1

1
0

/1
8

/2
0

2
1

C
O

E
G

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 E

L
K

 G
R

O
V

E
1

,6
1

4
.9

9

0
5

3
9

5
2

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

A
M

A
Z

O
N

A
M

A
Z

O
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
2

0
8

.7
0

0
5

3
9

5
3

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

B
G

 S
O

L
U

S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S

 B
Y

 B
G

 I
N

C
.

1
1

,3
4

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

5
4

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

B
S

K
4

B
S

K
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

6
3

7
.5

0

0
5

3
9

5
5

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
A

L
 C

U
T

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 C
U

T
 &

 C
O

R
E

, 
IN

C
3

,0
7

5
.0

0

0
5

3
9

5
6

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
A

P
 R

U
B

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 R
U

B
B

E
R

 &
 G

A
S

K
E

T
1

5
6

.6
0

0
5

3
9

5
7

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
F

F
N

T
F

ID
E

L
IT

Y
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 T
IT

L
E

2
2

7
.8

1

0
5

3
9

5
8

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
IN

T
A

S
C

IN
T

A
S

1
2

2
.3

8

0
5

3
9

5
9

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
IN

T
A

S
2

C
IN

T
A

S
7

7
9

.7
1

0
5

3
9

6
0

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
O

U
N

T
Y

3
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 O

F
 S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
4

5
.0

0

0
5

3
9

6
1

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

 O
R

T
C

O
L

D
 R

E
P

U
B

L
IC

 T
IT

L
E

1
0

.5
9

0
5

3
9

6
2

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

C
H

IC
C

H
IC

A
G

O
 T

IT
L

E
1

2
2

.3
6

0
5

3
9

6
3

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 A

R
T

A
R

T
IE

 N
A

T
H

A
N

2
0

1
.1

5

0
5

3
9

6
4

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 C

H
C

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
0

.2
3

0
5

3
9

6
5

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 G

S
A

G
U

R
M

U
K

H
 S

A
N

D
H

U
1

,6
9

5
.2

8

0
5

3
9

6
6

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 O

R
A

O
R

A
N

G
E

 C
O

A
S

T
 T

IT
L

E
1

1
4

.2
6

0
5

3
9

6
7

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 R

 R
R

E
A

L
T

Y
 R

O
U

N
D

U
P

6
1

.1
5

0
5

3
9

6
8

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 S

T
S

S
T

E
W

A
R

T
 T

IT
L

E
 O

F
 S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
3

2
.8

8

13



A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

, 
S

u
p

p
lie

s

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

, 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

V
e

h
ic

le
s
 

S
a

fe
ty

 T
ra

in
in

g
, 
P

u
b

lic
 R

e
la

ti
o

n
s

*2
0

2
2

 C
S

D
A

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

- 
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
W

e
lls

it
e

's
 a

n
d

 O
ff

ic
e

s

(7
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

/B
IT

 P
ro

g
ra

m

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 &

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 -
 B

a
c
k
h

o
e

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 -
  
W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

(5
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

  
W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

R
e

n
ta

l 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

R
e

n
ta

l 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

R
e

n
ta

l 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

R
e

n
ta

l 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

*C
a

lif
o

rn
ia

 S
ta

te
 F

e
e

 f
o

r 
R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 C
o

s
ts

 -
 U

S
A

 N
o

rt
h

 8
1

1

C
o

p
ie

r 
- 

A
D

M
IN

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

S
o

c
ia

l 
M

e
d

ia
 P

u
b

lic
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 C
a

m
p

a
ig

n

C
la

s
s
 A

 P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t 

(2
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

S
a

m
p

lin
g

 -
 T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

E
n

c
ro

a
c
h

m
e

n
t/
O

v
e

rh
e

a
d

 A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

E
n

c
ro

a
c
h

m
e

n
t/
O

v
e

rh
e

a
d

 A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
C

lo
s
e

d
 -

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
fu

n
d

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 -
 U

ti
lit

y
 C

re
w

 

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

  
- 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 C

re
w

0
5

3
9

6
9

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 T

O
K

T
IM

O
T

H
Y

 O
K

W
U

O
S

A
8

.1
7

0
5

3
9

7
0

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
F

ID
5

F
ID

E
L

IT
Y

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 T

IT
L

E
1

0
0

.0
8

0
5

3
9

7
1

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
F

T
C

F
IR

S
T

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
4

.2
5

0
5

3
9

7
2

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
ID

1
0

F
IR

S
T

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
7

4
.6

0

0
5

3
9

7
3

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
P

T
2

P
L

A
C

E
R

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
1

1
3

.1
5

0
5

3
9

7
4

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
S

T
4

S
T

E
W

A
R

T
 T

IT
L

E
 O

F
 S

A
C

R
A

M
E

N
T

O
2

0
1

.2
4

0
5

3
9

7
5

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
S

 A
A

C
A

R
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
7

0
7

.2
3

0
5

3
9

7
6

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
S

 S
H

C
A

R
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

4
5

.8
4

0
5

3
9

7
7

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
S

 T
F

C
A

R
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
7

1
3

.9
6

0
5

3
9

7
8

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

C
S

D
A

C
A

L
IF

 S
P

E
C

IA
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
 A

S
S

O
C

.
8

,1
9

5
.0

0

0
5

3
9

7
9

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

D
B

 C
O

L
S

D
B

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
A

L
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

2
,2

5
0

.0
0

0
5

3
9

8
0

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

E
G

 F
O

R
D

E
L

K
 G

R
O

V
E

 F
O

R
D

3
,7

1
3

.4
1

0
5

3
9

8
1

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

H
O

L
T

H
O

L
T

 O
F

 C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

2
,1

9
5

.3
8

0
5

3
9

8
2

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

IC
O

N
IX

IC
O

N
IX

 W
A

T
E

R
W

O
R

K
S

 (
U

S
) 

IN
C

.
7

,5
5

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

8
3

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

N
T

S
N

T
S

 M
IK

E
D

O
N

. 
L

L
C

4
3

2
.0

0

0
5

3
9

8
4

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

P
A

C
E

P
A

C
E

 S
U

P
P

L
Y

 C
O

R
P

8
,6

1
4

.9
6

0
5

3
9

8
5

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

P
E

S
T

P
E

S
T

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 I

N
C

8
4

.0
0

0
5

3
9

8
6

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

P
G

&
E

P
A

C
IF

IC
 G

A
S

 &
 E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

 
1

7
.5

2

0
5

3
9

8
7

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 5

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
2

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

8
8

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 5

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
2

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

8
9

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

S
IE

R
R

A
S

IE
R

R
A

 O
F

F
IC

E
 S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

3
2

3
.9

8

0
5

3
9

9
0

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

S
IG

N
 C

E
T

H
E

 S
IG

N
 C

E
N

T
E

R
1

8
9

.0
6

0
5

3
9

9
1

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

T
R

E
N

C
H

T
R

E
N

C
H

 P
L

A
T

E
 R

E
N

T
A

L
 C

O
8

1
1

.0
9

0
5

3
9

9
2

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

T
R

E
N

C
H

T
R

E
N

C
H

 P
L

A
T

E
 R

E
N

T
A

L
 C

O
1

,2
1

6
.0

9

0
5

3
9

9
3

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

T
R

E
N

C
H

T
R

E
N

C
H

 P
L

A
T

E
 R

E
N

T
A

L
 C

O
1

,1
6

7
.4

2

0
5

3
9

9
4

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

T
R

E
N

C
H

T
R

E
N

C
H

 P
L

A
T

E
 R

E
N

T
A

L
 C

O
1

6
2

.2
4

0
5

3
9

9
5

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

U
N

D
E

R
U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 A
L

E
R

T
2

,1
7

8
.6

9

0
5

3
9

9
6

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

U
S

B
A

N
K

U
.S

. 
B

A
N

K
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 F

IN
A

N
C

E
7

0
2

.3
2

0
5

3
9

9
7

1
0

/2
0

/2
0

2
1

W
A

L
K

E
R

W
A

L
K

E
R

 K
R

E
A

T
IV

E
1

,7
0

0
.0

0

0
5

3
9

9
8

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

A
M

A
Z

O
N

A
M

A
Z

O
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
4

3
2

.6
4

0
5

3
9

9
9

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

B
 K

E
N

T
B

R
A

N
D

O
N

 K
E

N
T

1
1

5
.0

0

0
5

4
0

0
0

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

B
A

T
T

E
R

B
A

T
T

E
R

IE
S

 P
L

U
S

1
0

4
.7

3

0
5

4
0

0
1

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

B
A

T
T

E
R

B
A

T
T

E
R

IE
S

 P
L

U
S

1
1

0
.3

0

0
5

4
0

0
2

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

B
A

Y
 A

L
A

B
A

Y
 A

L
A

R
M

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
2

1
3

.3
5

0
5

4
0

0
3

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

B
E

N
 R

E
S

B
E

N
E

F
IT

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

, 
IN

C
1

2
5

.0
0

0
5

4
0

0
4

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

B
R

E
N

N
T

A
B

R
E

N
N

T
A

G
 P

A
C

IF
IC

, 
IN

C
3

,3
7

6
.9

6

0
5

4
0

0
5

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

B
S

K
4

B
S

K
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

3
4

9
.5

0

0
5

4
0

0
6

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
C

P
P

M
C

C
P

P
M

1
6

3
.3

0

0
5

4
0

0
7

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
IN

T
A

S
2

C
IN

T
A

S
1

5
7

.9
2

0
5

4
0

0
8

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
O

E
G

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 E

L
K

 G
R

O
V

E
4

,1
6

3
.7

0

0
5

4
0

0
9

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
O

E
G

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 E

L
K

 G
R

O
V

E
9

5
.7

9

0
5

4
0

1
0

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

C
H

I1
5

C
H

IC
A

G
O

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

.
9

5
.7

8

0
5

4
0

1
1

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 B

R
F

B
R

IA
N

 F
IT

Z
G

E
R

A
L

D
7

.1
5

0
5

4
0

1
2

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 C

T
T

C
IN

D
Y

 T
R

A
N

 &
 T

H
O

M
A

S
 N

G
U

Y
E

N
7

0
.7

0

0
5

4
0

1
3

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 H

M
P

H
IM

A
N

S
H

U
 M

A
H

E
S

H
 P

A
T

E
L

2
4

9
.4

1

0
5

4
0

1
4

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 K

T
H

K
A

R
E

N
 T

H
O

M
P

S
O

N
3

6
.8

0

0
5

4
0

1
5

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 L

E
N

L
E

N
N

A
R

 H
O

M
E

S
 C

A
, 

IN
C

6
9

.6
5

0
5

4
0

1
6

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 L

E
N

L
E

N
N

A
R

 H
O

M
E

S
 C

A
, 

IN
C

1
4

.8
2

0
5

4
0

1
7

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 L

E
N

L
E

N
N

A
R

 H
O

M
E

S
 C

A
, 

IN
C

4
1

.4
8

0
5

4
0

1
8

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 P

L
A

P
L

A
C

E
R

 T
IT

L
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
1

5
1

.1
0

0
5

4
0

1
9

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 R

H
O

R
A

N
D

Y
 H

O
W

A
R

D
3

.0
2

0
5

4
0

2
0

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 T

Y
B

T
Y

L
E

R
 B

O
G

A
R

T
1

8
.8

8

0
5

4
0

2
1

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
 U

T
P

U
T

O
P

IA
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
1

5
0

.4
2

0
5

4
0

2
2

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
F

N
C

F
ID

E
L

IT
Y

 N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
9

.6
8

0
5

4
0

2
3

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

C
R

F
F

T
C

F
IR

S
T

 A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 T

IT
L

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

2
.4

7

0
5

4
0

2
4

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

D
IT

C
H

 3
D

IT
C

H
 W

IT
C

H
 W

E
S

T
9

4
7

.1
9

0
5

4
0

2
5

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
F

A
S

T
E

N
A

L
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

3
3

9
.5

4

0
5

4
0

2
6

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

F
E

R
G

U
S

F
E

R
G

U
S

O
N

 W
A

T
E

R
W

O
R

K
S

 #
1

4
2

3
6

0
6

.6
3

14



A
d

v
e

rt
is

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

G
ia

n
t 
P

u
m

p
k
in

 F
e

s
ti
v
a

l

(2
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

  
- 

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

E
G

W
D

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 B

u
ild

in
g

 T
e

n
a

n
t 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

(2
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
 -

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 C

re
w

/W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

M
a

te
ri

a
ls

  
- 

W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

L
ie

n
 R

e
le

a
s
e

*A
n

n
u

a
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 T

a
x
 B

ill
 

(2
) 

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 -

 M
a

te
ri

a
ls

 -
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

0
5

4
0

2
7

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

F
E

R
R

E
L

L
F

E
R

R
E

L
L

G
A

S
2

9
.4

1

0
5

4
0

2
8

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

F
R

O
N

T
 C

F
R

O
N

T
IE

R
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
2

4
6

.8
0

0
5

4
0

2
9

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

H
E

R
B

U
R

G
H

E
R

B
U

R
G

E
R

 P
U

B
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

, 
IN

C
5

2
5

.0
0

0
5

4
0

3
0

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

J
A

Y
S

J
A

Y
'S

 T
R

U
C

K
IN

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
2

,6
2

4
.6

4

0
5

4
0

3
1

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

M
F

D
B

 A
C

M
F

D
B

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

S
 I

N
C

.
3

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
5

4
0

3
2

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

N
O

R
 C

A
L

N
O

R
 -

 C
A

L
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 R

E
N

T
A

L
S

2
1

5
.5

0

0
5

4
0

3
3

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

N
T

S
N

T
S

 M
IK

E
D

O
N

. 
L

L
C

1
7

5
.8

4

0
5

4
0

3
4

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

O
R

E
IL

L
Y

O
'R

E
IL

L
Y

 A
U

T
O

 P
A

R
T

S
1

3
1

.7
2

0
5

4
0

3
5

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

P
A

C
E

P
A

C
E

 S
U

P
P

L
Y

 C
O

R
P

2
,4

6
0

.2
0

0
5

4
0

3
6

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

P
E

S
T

P
E

S
T

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 I

N
C

1
6

8
.0

0

0
5

4
0

3
7

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

P
R

E
 A

L
L

P
R

E
F

E
R

R
E

D
 A

L
L

IA
N

C
E

, 
IN

C
4

3
.0

0

0
5

4
0

3
8

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

R
O

O
C

O
R

O
O

C
O

 R
E

N
T

S
2

,8
8

3
.8

7

0
5

4
0

3
9

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 5

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
2

0
.0

0

0
5

4
0

4
0

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 5

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
2

0
.0

0

0
5

4
0

4
1

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 5

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
2

0
.0

0

0
5

4
0

4
2

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

S
A

C
 T

A
X

S
A

C
R

A
M

E
N

T
O

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

1
0

0
.0

0

0
5

4
0

4
3

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

S
IE

R
R

A
S

IE
R

R
A

 O
F

F
IC

E
 S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

1
2

0
.4

2

0
5

4
0

4
4

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

T
E

IC
H

 A
T

E
IC

H
E

R
T

 A
G

G
R

E
G

A
T

E
S

9
2

6
.6

6

0
5

4
0

4
5

1
0

/2
7

/2
0

2
1

U
S

S
U

N
IT

E
D

 S
IT

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
,0

4
7

.7
8

 T
o

ta
l:

4
6

5
,2

5
1

.7
5

15



B
O

A
R

D
 A

N
D

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 M
O

N
T

H
L

Y
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

/R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S

IN
D

IV
ID

U
A

L
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

A
M

O
U

N
T

 P
A

ID

T
ra

v
is

 F
ra

n
k
lin

C
a

l/
O

S
H

A
 T

ra
in

in
g

$
6

5
0

.0
0

B
ru

c
e

 K
a

m
ilo

s
A

C
W

A
 2

0
2

1
 F

a
ll 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 

$
7

2
5

.0
0

B
ru

c
e

 K
a

m
ilo

s
R

W
A

 2
0

th
 A

n
n

iv
e

rs
a

ry
 C

e
le

b
ra

ti
o

n
$

1
3

0
.0

0

B
ra

n
d

o
n

 K
e

n
t

C
la

s
s
 A

 P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

$
1

1
5

.0
0

A
m

b
e

r 
K

a
v
e

rt
A

C
W

A
 2

0
2

1
 F

a
ll 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 

$
7

2
5

.0
0

J
o

s
e

 M
e

n
d

o
z
a

B
o

o
t 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

$
3

5
0

.0
0

S
te

fa
n

i 
P

h
ill

ip
s

A
C

W
A

 2
0

2
1

 F
a

ll 
C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 

$
7

2
5

.0
0

S
o

p
h

ia
 S

c
h

e
rm

a
n

A
C

W
A

 2
0

2
1

 F
a

ll 
C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 

$
7

2
5

.0
0

S
o

p
h

ia
 S

c
h

e
rm

a
n

R
W

A
 2

0
th

 A
n

n
iv

e
rs

a
ry

 C
e

le
b

ra
ti
o

n
$

1
3

0
.0

0

S
te

v
e

 S
h

a
w

C
A

-N
V

 A
W

W
A

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 R
e

n
e

w
a

l
$

1
0

0
.0

0

$
4

,3
7

5
.0

0

A
s

 o
f 

1
0

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

16

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#   c



A
c
ti

v
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

A
s
 o

f 
1

0
/3

1
/2

0
2
1

J
U

L
Y

A
U

G
S

E
P

T
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
J

U
N

E
W

a
te

r 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
:

  
 M

e
te

re
d

  
  

 R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

1
2
,3

0
5

  
  

1
2
,3

1
8

1
2
,3

0
0

1
2
,3

0
9

  
  

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

3
6
2

  
  

  
  

 
3
6
3

3
6
2

3
6
2

  
  

 I
rr

ig
a
ti

o
n

1
8
3

  
  

  
  

 
1
8
3

1
8
3

1
8
3

  
  

 F
ir

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
8
3

  
  

  
  

 
1
8
3

1
8
3

1
8
3

T
o

ta
l 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
1
3
,0

3
3

  
  

1
3
,0

4
7

  
1
3
,0

2
8

  
  

 
1
3
,0

3
7

  
-

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
 

A
c
ti

v
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

F
Y

 2
0
2
0
/2

0
2
1

J
U

L
Y

A
U

G
S

E
P

T
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

J
A

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
J

U
N

E
W

a
te

r 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
:

  
 M

e
te

re
d

  
  

 R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

1
2
,1

6
1

  
  

1
2
,1

6
3

1
2
,3

0
8

1
2
,2

9
4

1
2
,2

9
5

1
2
,3

1
1

1
2
,2

9
2

1
2
,2

9
1

1
2
,2

9
8

  
 

1
2
,3

0
1

  
1
2
,3

0
9

  
1
2
,3

1
7

  
  

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

3
6
3

  
  

  
  

 
3
6
3

3
6
4

3
6
3

3
6
2

3
6
3

3
6
1

3
6
3

3
6
3

  
  

  
  

3
6
2

  
  

  
 

3
6
2

  
  

  
 

3
6
2

  
  

 I
rr

ig
a
ti

o
n

1
7
8

  
  

  
  

 
1
7
8

1
7
8

1
8
1

1
8
0

1
8
0

1
8
1

1
8
1

1
8
3

  
  

  
  

1
8
4

  
  

  
 

1
8
3

  
  

  
 

1
8
2

  
  

 F
ir

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

1
8
0

  
  

  
  

 
1
8
0

1
8
1

1
8
2

1
8
0

1
8
0

1
8
0

1
8
1

1
8
3

  
  

  
  

1
8
3

  
  

  
 

1
8
2

  
  

  
 

1
8
2

T
o

ta
l 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts

1
2
,8

8
2

  
  

1
2
,8

8
4

  
1
3
,0

3
1

  
  

 
1
3
,0

2
0

  
1
3
,0

1
7

  
1
3
,0

3
4

  
1
3
,0

1
4

  
1
3
,0

1
6

  
1
3
,0

2
7

  
 

1
3
,0

3
0

  
1
3
,0

3
6

  
1
3
,0

4
3

  
  

 

17

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#   d



Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services 6,394,350$        

Operating Expenses:

Salaries & Benefits 1,212,782          

Seminars, Conventions and Travel 5,403                  

Office & Operational 492,767             

Purchased Water 1,294,082          

Outside Services 228,082             

Equipment Rent, Taxes, and Utilities 200,869             

Total Operating Expenses 3,433,985          

Net Operating Income 2,960,366$        

Annual Interest & Principal Payments

$3,882,499 1,294,166$        (1)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio, YTD Only: 2.29                    

   Required 1.15                    

Notes

1.  Reflects budget divided by number of months year to date. 

     However, first Principal/Interest Payments made in September.

     Projected Annual Budget Coverage Ratio is 1.26                    

As of 10/31/2021

Bond Covenant Status

For Fiscal Year 2021-22

18

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#   e



4/12=33.33%

General Ledger YTD Annual %

Reference Activity Budget Realized

Revenues 4100 - 4900 6,394,350$     15,716,094$   40.69%

Operating Expenses

Salaries & Benefits 5100 - 5280 1,300,903       4,619,614       28.16%

less Capitalized Labor (88,121)           (400,192)         22.02%

Adjusted Salaries and Benefits: 1,212,782$     4,219,422$     28.74%

Seminars, Conventions and Travel 5300 - 5350 5,403              48,859            11.06%

Office & Operational 5410 - 5494 492,767          1,345,271       36.63%

Purchased Water est. (1) 5495 - 5495 1,294,082       3,511,320       36.85%

Outside Services 5505 - 5580 228,082          1,150,358       19.83%

Equipment Rent, Taxes, Utilities 5620 - 5760 200,869          561,740          35.76%

Total Operational Expenses 3,433,985$     10,836,970$   31.69%

Net Operating Income 2,960,366$     4,879,124$     60.67%

Non-Operating Revenues

Interest Received 9910 - 9910 14,957            25,000 59.83%

Unrealized Gains/(Losses) 9911 - 9911 (33,291)           -                  100.00%

Other Income/(Expense) 9920 - 9973 3,712              -                  0.00%

Total Non-Operating Revenues (14,622)$         25,000$          -58.49%

Non-Operating Expenses

Election Costs 9950 - 9950 -                  -                  0.00%

Capital Expenses (2):

Capital Improvements 1705 - 1760 93,260            2,975,000       3.13%

Capital Replacements 1705 - 1760 788,367          1,980,000       39.82%

Unforeseen Capital Projects 1705 - 1760 -                  100,000          0.00%

Total Capital Expenses: 881,626$        5,055,000$     17.44%

Bond Interest Accrued (3) 7300 - 7300 480,833 1,442,499 33.33%

Total Non Operating Expenses 1,362,459$     6,497,499$     20.97%

Bond Retirement (3): 813,333$        2,440,000$     33.33%

Total Expenditures 5,624,400       19,749,469     28.48%

Revenues in Excess of All Expenditures, including Capital 769,951$        (4,033,375)$    -19.09%

Notes:

1. There is a lag in water billings from the Sacramento County Water Agency. Included above 

    is an estimate of costs to date based on water used.

2. YTD Activity includes $88,121 in capitalized labor charged to capital projects.

3. Bond retirement payments are made two times a year in September and March

4. Accounts receivable balance, which represents the difference between 

    the total amount billed and total amount collected, as of October 31, 2021 is $618,488.17.

Year to Date Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget

As of 10/31/2021

19

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#   f



A
c
c
o

u
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e

r 
/ 
n
a

m
e

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 
N

a
m

e
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 
T

y
p
e

R
e

s
tr

ic
ti
o

n
s

M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e

G
/L

 A
c

c
o

u
n

t 
#F

u
n

d

H
E

L
D

 B
Y

 B
O

N
D

 T
R

U
S

T
E

E
:

1
1

1
0

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
B

N
Y

 8
9

2
7

4
4

 F
R

C
D

 2
0

1
4

A
 D

E
B

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
D

re
y
fu

s
 I
n
s
t 
T

re
a

s
u
ry

M
M

 M
u
tu

a
l 
F

u
n
d

R
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
0

.0
0

1
1

1
2

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
B

N
Y

 7
4

3
8

5
0

 F
R

C
D

 2
0

1
6

A
 D

E
B

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
D

re
y
fu

s
 I
n
s
t 
T

re
a

s
u
ry

M
M

 M
u
tu

a
l 
F

u
n
d

 R
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
 

0
.0

0

S
u

b
to

ta
l

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
0

0
1

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
C

a
s
h
 o

n
 H

a
n
d

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
3

0
0

.0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

H
E

L
D

 B
Y

 F
&

M
 B

A
N

K
:

1
0

1
1

-0
0

0
-1

0
F

R
C

D
F

&
M

 0
8

-0
3

2
0

0
9

-0
1

 C
H

E
C

K
IN

G
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

 
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1

0
9

.2
6

1
0

1
1

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8

-0
3

2
0

1
7

-0
1

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
4

,7
6

0
,2

6
1

.5
9

1
0

8
4

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8

-0
3

2
0

1
7

0
2

-3
1

 M
O

N
E

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

T
0

.2
5

%
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1

0
0

,6
5

7
.6

1

1
0

3
1

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8

-0
3

2
9

1
2

-0
1

 C
R

E
D

IT
 C

A
R

D
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
2

1
5

,0
3

0
.8

7

1
0

6
1

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
F

&
M

 0
8

-0
3

2
8

9
0

-0
1

 P
A

Y
R

O
L

L
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
2

0
0

,1
7

5
.6

2

1
0

7
1

-0
0

0
-2

0
 

W
a

te
r

F
&

M
 0

8
-0

3
2

9
2

0
-0

1
 D

R
A

F
T

S
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
2

9
4

,0
3

7
.9

1

S
u

b
to

ta
l

5
,5

7
0

,2
7

2
.8

6
$

  
  
  

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

1
0

8
0

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 T

re
a

s
u
re

r 
- 

S
a

c
ra

m
e

n
to

 C
a

lif
o

rn
ia

L
A

IF
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 
P

o
o

l
0

.2
0

%
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
5

,4
7

3
,6

7
4

.8
9

$
  
  
  

1
0

8
1

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r
C

A
L

T
ru

s
t 
M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e

rm
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t

0
.1

7
%

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1

,3
8

4
,8

6
8

.7
2

$
  
  
  

1
0

8
2

-0
0

0
-2

0
W

a
te

r

P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

 D
A

T
E

C
U

S
IP

IS
S

U
E

D
 B

Y
C

A
L

L
 D

A
T

E
M

A
T

U
R

IT
Y

 D
A

T
E

%
 o

f 
P

o
rt

fo
lio

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
Y

ie
ld

C
O

S
T

 B
A

S
IS

M
A

R
K

E
T

 V
A

L
U

E

9
/3

0
/2

0
1

6
N

/A
U

n
io

n
 B

a
n
k
 o

f 
C

a
lif

o
rn

ia
N

/A
N

/A
0

.9
0

%
0

.0
2

%
3

6
,6

4
2

.2
9

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
6

,6
4

2
.2

9
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

1
1

/1
9

/2
0

2
0

3
1

3
5

G
A

5
H

0
F

e
d

e
ra

l 
H

o
m

e
 L

o
a

n
 (

F
H

L
B

)
0

7
/1

0
/2

0
 -

 q
rt

ly
1

1
/2

5
/2

0
2

5
2

4
.6

0
%

0
.5

9
0

%
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
  
  
  
  
 

9
8

2
,2

8
0

.0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

0
3

1
3

3
E

L
Q

5
6

F
e

d
e

ra
l 
H

o
m

e
 L

o
a

n
  
(F

H
L

B
)

1
1

/2
5

/2
0

 -
 q

rt
ly

7
/2

/2
0

2
4

2
4

.9
0

%
0

.5
7

0
%

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
 

9
9

3
,5

1
0

.0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

7
/2

9
/2

0
2

1
3

1
3

3
E

M
T

3
6

F
e

d
e

ra
l 
H

o
m

e
 L

o
a

n
 (

F
H

L
B

) 
0

4
/1

5
/2

6
- 

q
rt

ly
4

/2
6

/2
0

2
6

2
4

.8
0

%
0

.8
8

0
%

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
 

9
9

1
,2

5
0

.0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

7
/3

1
/2

0
2

0
3

1
3

6
G

4
Y

P
2

F
e

d
e

ra
l 
N

a
tl
 M

T
G

 A
S

S
N

0
7

/0
9

/2
0

2
1

 -
 q

rt
ly

7
/9

/2
0

2
5

2
4

.8
0

%
0

.7
2

0
%

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

  
  
  
  
 

9
9

2
,8

2
0

.0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  

4
,0

3
6

,6
4

2
.2

9
$

  
  
  
  
 

3
,9

9
6

,5
0

2
.2

9
$

  
  
  

Y
T

M
 =

 Y
ie

ld
 t
o

 M
a

tu
ri
ty

T
o

ta
l

1
6

,4
2

5
,6

1
8

.7
6

$
  
  

q
tr

ly
 =

 q
u
a

rt
e

rl
y

c
o

n
t.
 =

 c
o

n
ti
n
u
o

u
s

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
s

tr
ic

te
d

 
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

 
T

o
ta

l 
U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
1

6
,4

2
5

,6
1

8
.7

6
$

  
  

C
a

ll
 D

a
te

C
U

S
IP

Is
s

u
e

d
 b

y
:

C
a

ll
 D

a
te

M
a

tu
ri

ty
 D

a
te

In
te

re
s

t 
R

a
te

Y
T

M
P

ri
c

e
M

a
rk

e
t 

V
a

lu
e

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

A
u

th
o

ri
z
e

d
 S

ig
n

e
rs

B
ru

c
e

 K
a

m
il
o

s
-

$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

P
a

ri
c

k
 L

e
e

S
te

fa
n

i 
P

h
il
li
p

s

D
o

n
e

ll
a

 M
u

ri
ll
o

C
A

S
H

 -
 D

e
ta

il
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts

A
s

 o
f 

1
0

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#   g



C
o

n
su

lt
an

t 
Ex

p
e

n
se

s
A

s 
o

f 
1

0
/3

1
/2

0
2

1

F
is

c
a
l 
R

e
ta

in
e
r 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
n

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

 P
a

id
 t

o
 

d
a

te

2
0

2
1

-2
0

2
2

 

F
Y

 B
u

d
g

e
t

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

y
e

a
r 

(0
.3

3
%

)

J
R

G
 A

tt
o

rn
e

y
s
, 
L

L
P

T
a

s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
T

B
D

1
,7

3
4

$
  
  
  
 

6
,4

2
6

$
  
  
  
 

S
o

m
a

c
h

 S
im

m
o

n
s
 &

 D
u

n
n

T
a

s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
T

B
D

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

B
A

K
E

R
 M

A
N

O
C

K
 &

 J
E

N
S

E
N

T
a

s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
T

B
D

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

L
ie

b
e

rt
 C

a
s
s
id

y
 W

h
it
m

o
re

T
a

s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
T

B
D

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

3
,5

7
4

$
  
  
  
 

M
u

rp
h

y
 A

u
s
ti
n

 A
d

a
m

s
T

a
s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
T

B
D

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

T
o

ta
l

1
,7

3
4

$
  
  
  
 

1
0

,0
0

0
$

  
  

1
7

5
,0

0
0

$
  

5
.7

1
%

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 b

y
 B

G
, 
In

c
.

T
a

s
k
 o

rd
e

rs
7

9
2

,6
7

6
2

2
,5

6
8

$
  
  

8
8

,3
8

7
$

  
  

2
7

4
,6

0
0

$
  

3
2

.1
9

%

M
a
jo

r 
C

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
n

t
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t

 P
a

id
 t

o
 

d
a

te

2
0

2
1

-2
0

2
2

 

F
Y

 B
u

d
g

e
t

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

o
f 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

t 

A
m

o
u

n
t

*E
a

rl
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
 

P
S

A
5

0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

3
6

$
  
  
  
 

3
8

,3
7

6
$

  
  

7
6

.7
5

%

M
F

D
B

 A
rc

h
it
e

c
ts

P
S

A
1

9
2

,5
0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  

5
8

,5
0

0
$

  
  

1
2

2
,0

0
0

$
  

6
3

.3
8

%

S
ta

n
te

c
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
P

S
A

9
8

,2
1

2
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

4
7

,0
7

2
$

  
  

4
7

.9
3

%

T
u

lly
 &

 Y
o

u
n

g
P

S
A

7
8

,5
0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

7
3

,2
9

1
$

  
  

9
3

.3
6

%

A
.P

. 
T

h
o

m
a

s
P

S
A

3
9

,1
0

8
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

2
4

,6
7

2
$

  
  

6
3

.0
9

%

F
lo

w
lin

e
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
6

2
2

,0
7

5
$

  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

4
2

8
,2

7
0

$
  

6
8

.8
5

%

A
rr

o
w

 D
ri

lle
rs

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
2

9
0

,5
4

7
$

  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

-
$

  
  
  
  
  

0
.0

0
%

*C
h
a
n
g

e
 O

rd
e
r 

to
 A

m
e
n
d
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
$
1
0
,0

0
0
. 

O
ri
g

in
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
m

o
u
n
t 

w
a
s
 $

4
0
,0

0
0
.

1
,3

7
0

,9
4

3
$

  
  
  
 

6
0

,5
3

6
$

  
  

7
3

3
,6

8
1

$
  

5
3

.5
2

%

21

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#   h



T
o

ta
l

S
e

p
t

O
c

t

C
a

p
it

a
l 
P

ro
je

c
t

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
je

c
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

 P
ro

je
c

t 
E

x
p

 

to
 D

a
te

 

P
e

rc
e

n
t 

S
p

e
n

t

C
a

p
it

a
li
z
e

d
 

L
a

b
o

r 

F
u

n
d

 

T
y
p

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

T
y
p

e
2

0
2

1
-2

2
 B

u
d

g
e

t
 P

ro
je

c
t 

E
x

p
 P

ro
je

c
t 

E
x

p
T

o
ta

l 
Y

T
D

 (
1

)

Y
T

D
 %

 

S
p

e
n

t

B
a

c
k
y
a

rd
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

s
/S

e
rv

ic
e

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

1
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  

7
2

9
,6

6
5

  
  
  
  
 

4
8

.6
4

%
8

4
,4

3
7

$
  
  
  
 

R
&

R
S

u
p

p
ly

/D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
1

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  

4
2

5
,7

2
0

$
  
  
  

9
0

,6
4

3
$

  
  
  
  

7
2

9
,6

6
5

$
  
  
  
  
 

4
8

.6
4

%

2
n

d
 A

v
e

 W
a

te
r 

M
a

in
8

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

R
&

R
S

u
p

p
ly

/D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
8

6
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

T
ru

m
a

n
 S

t/
A

d
a

m
s
 S

t 
W

a
te

r 
M

a
in

2
4

4
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,6

8
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
.5

1
%

3
,6

8
4

  
  
  
  
  
  

R
&

R
S

u
p

p
ly

/D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
2

4
4

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,6

6
5

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
,0

1
9

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
,6

8
4

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
.5

1
%

W
e

ll 
R

e
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

7
5

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
5

,0
1

7
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
3

.3
6

%
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

R
&

R
S

u
p

p
ly

/D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
7

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
5

,0
1

7
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
5

,0
1

7
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

7
3

.3
6

%

P
L

C
 B

u
c
k
e

t 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

5
0

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

R
&

R
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t

5
0

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

P
a

v
e

m
e

n
t 
R

e
p

a
ir
 a

n
d

 C
o

a
t 
S

e
a

l
2

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

R
&

R
B

u
ild

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

it
e

2
5

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

S
e

rv
ic

e
 L

in
e

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

1
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
IP

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
1

0
0

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

B
ri
n

k
m

a
n

 T
ra

n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 M

a
in

4
2

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
IP

S
u

p
p

ly
/D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
4

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

C
h

lo
ri
n

e
 A

n
a

ly
z
e

rs
 S

h
a

llo
w

 W
e

lls
7

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
IP

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t
7

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

W
e

ll 
4

D
 R

a
d

io
 A

n
te

n
n

a
3

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
IP

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t
3

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

9
8

2
9

 W
a

te
rm

a
n

 R
d

2
,3

0
0

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  

9
1

,2
6

0
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
.9

7
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
IP

B
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

2
,3

0
0

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,0

1
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

6
0

,1
1

5
  
  
  
  
  

9
1

,2
6

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

3
.9

7
%

F
ib

e
r 

O
p

ti
c
 C

a
b

le
3

0
0

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.6

7
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
IP

B
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

3
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.6

7
%

D
ig

it
a

l 
D

a
ta

 C
o

lle
c
to

r 
&

 G
P

S
 R

o
v
e

r
2

3
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

C
IP

B
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

2
3

,0
0

0
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

C
o

m
p

a
c
t 
L

o
a

d
e

r 
w

it
h

 C
o

ld
 P

la
te

1
0

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
IP

B
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

1
0

5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

U
n

fo
re

s
e

e
n

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

1
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
-

1
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

(2
)

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l
5

,0
5

5
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  

8
8

1
,6

2
6

$
  
  
  
 

1
7

.4
4

%
8

8
,1

2
1

$
  
  
  
 

5
,0

5
5

,0
0

0
$

  
  
  
  
  

4
8

6
,4

1
6

$
  
  
  

1
5

1
,7

7
7

$
  
  
  

8
8

1
,6

2
6

$
  
  
  
  
 

1
7

.4
4

%

(1
) 

 I
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 $

8
8

,1
2

1
 i
n

 c
a

p
it
a

liz
e

d
 l
a

b
o

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 1
0

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

(2
) 

 I
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 u

n
fo

rs
e

e
n

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
:

T
o

ta
l

-
$

  
  
  
  
  
  

M
a

jo
r 

C
a

p
it

a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

je
c

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

v
s

 A
c

tu
a

ls

A
s

 o
f 

1
0

/3
1

/2
0

2
1

22

AKavert
Typewritten text
Consent CalendarItem#   i



AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

November 16, 2021 
 
 
TO:  Chair and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM: Patrick Lee, Finance Manager/Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT RESERVE AND 

CAPITAL INVESTMENT POLICY                                                                                   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is presented to the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors for 
discussion and to provide direction on potential changes to the Reserve and Capital 
Investment Policy. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
On June 16, 2020, the Florin Resource Conservation District (District) Board of Directors 
(Board) adopted the District’s Reserve and Capital Investments Policy (Policy), 
establishing the funding levels for each of the District’s reserve funds. Per the Policy, the 
District’s unrestricted net position as of July 1 of each fiscal year is allocated to: 1) the 
Operating Reserve Fund based on 120 days of annual budgeted operating and 
maintenance (O&M) expenses; 2) the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund based on the 
upcoming year’s capital improvement program (CIP) budget; 3) the Capital Replacement 
Reserve Fund based on the upcoming year’s capital replacement program budget; 4) the 
Elections and Special Studies Reserve Fund based on the amount as approved in the 
annual budget; and 5) the remaining unallocated unrestricted net position balance 
allocated to Future Capital Improvements Reserve Fund and Future Capital 
Replacements Reserve Fund in the ratio of 25:75, respectively. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
At the Special Board Meeting on June 1, 2021, staff received direction from the Board to 
complete a review and analysis of the District’s Policy to determine the sufficiency of 
reserve funding levels to meet the operating and capital needs of the District. Since the 
District’s Policy is based on the allocation of the unrestricted net position balance as of 
July 1 each year, staff recommended that this analysis be completed after the finalization 
and issuance of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021, 
at which time the unrestricted net position as of July 1, 2021 is determinable. 
 

23



November 16, 2021 
 
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT RESERVE AND CAPITAL 
INVESTMENT POLICY              
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

Present Situation 
 
Staff has completed the review and analysis of the District’s Policy to determine the 
sufficiency of funding levels for capital projects that are included in the District’s Five-Year 
CIP, as well as the sufficiency of funding levels for operating reserves to minimize any 
potential disruptions in business operations due to emergencies. The analysis included 
the consideration and review of various options to help manage and maintain the District’s 
reserve levels. A summary of the analysis is included below. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position: 
 
Unrestricted net position as of July 1 of each year is the basis for allocation to the District’s 
reserves. As bulletized below, the composition of unrestricted net position is the 
difference between total assets, net of capital assets and associated accumulated 
depreciation, and total liabilities, net of the debt that is attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of the capital asset. Because of this, unrestricted net 
position should not be confused with cash on hand. As of July 1, 2021, the District has an 
unrestricted net position of $19,139,482, comprised of the following: 
 

• Cash                 $  17,709,471 

• Other Current Assets              $    2,760,289 

• Net Deferred Items               $    2,773,877 

• Pension and OPEB Liability             $   (2,409,937) 

• Other Liabilities               $   (1,694,218) 

• Total Unrestricted Net Position             $  19,139,482 
 
Per the District’s Policy, the unrestricted net position was allocated to reserves for FY 
2021-22 as follows: 
 

 Operations Reserves (120 days of O&M budget) $   4,831,058 
 FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Reserve      $   3,025,000 
 FY 2021-22 Capital Replacement Reserve      $   2,030,000 
 Elections and Special Studies Reserve   $                 - 
 Future Capital Improvements Reserve   $   6,940,068 
 Future Capital Replacements Reserve   $   2,313,356 

         $ 19,139,482 
 
Of the $19.1 million allocated to reserves, approximately $9.9 million accounts for 
allocations to certain reserves that are nondiscretionary to ensure the ability continue 

24



November 16, 2021 
 
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT RESERVE AND CAPITAL 
INVESTMENT POLICY              
Page 3 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

operations and capital projects in the case there is a major business disruption. These 
nondiscretionary allocations are to the Operating Reserve Fund, Capital Improvement 
Reserve Fund and Capital Replacement Reserve Fund. The amounts allocated to these 
reserves are established based on the annual adopted budget and annual adopted capital 
improvement program. This leaves approximately $9.2 million to be allocated to future 
capital improvements and future capital replacements. 
 
CIP Funding: 
 
There are multiple options for funding capital projects, with the two (2) most common 
forms being debt financing and cash financing. Debt financing is typically used when 
funding large capital projects since it is often difficult to build up enough cash reserves. 
Cash financing is typically used when funding smaller projects such as recurring 
improvements, repairs, and replacements of infrastructure. 
 
The District has been utilizing cash financing, also referred to as pay-as-you-go funding, 
to fund its ongoing capital projects since 2016. The District’s water rates have been 
established to ensure that revenue requirements cover operating costs as well as annual 
capital projects. Although the District maintains an outstanding debt balance, the ability 
to fund capital projects on a pay-as-you-go basis gives the District the greatest flexibility 
when managing water rates. By not issuing additional debt for current capital projects, the 
District has the ability to defer anticipated rate increases by using excess reserves in 
years when expenses exceed revenues. Once new debt is issued, rates would typically 
need to be adjusted accordingly to ensure that revenue requirements are sufficient to 
cover future debt service payments. 
 
Since 2016, the District has funded an annual average of $1.6 million in capital projects 
on a pay-as-you-go basis. Of the $1.6 million, approximately 75% of the cost is 
attributable to the replacement of aging watermains while the remaining 25% is 
attributable to the replacement of aging equipment and/or new minor capital projects. 
Since the District’s major capital asset is its infrastructure, the replacement of aging 
watermains represents the largest on-going and future capital expense. 
 
An analysis conducted estimates that District staff can replace 5,000 linear feet of water 
main annually at a cost of approximately $238 per linear foot, totaling approximately $1.2 
million annually. At 5,000 linear feet annually, District staff would be able to replace all 
275,616 linear feet of asbestos-cement (AC) pipe within the District, which has an 
average useful life of 75 years, in 55 years, all within the annual average spending of $1.6 
million for capital projects. 

25



November 16, 2021 
 
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT RESERVE AND CAPITAL 
INVESTMENT POLICY              
Page 4 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

Other Considerations: 
 
In addition to ensuring that the District maintains sufficient levels of reserves to cover 
capital projects and operations in case of emergencies, staff reviewed other factors that 
should be considered when managing reserves to ensure funding levels are not too 
excessive or de minimis. Below are the items that were considered: 
  

1. Managing reserves by monitoring the Asset Management Program and 
ensuring appropriate funding for future capital projects. The District maintains 
an Asset Management Program (AMP) which identifies all its major capital assets 
and associated information, such as: the year the asset was placed into service; the 
estimated useful life of the asset; the estimated replacement cost of the asset; current 
condition of the asset; and the anticipated rehabilitation or replacement date of the 
asset.  
 
Although the AMP is a useful tool in tracking when assets will need to be rehabilitated 
or replaced and the estimated cost of each project, the need to replace certain assets, 
such as a well, is dependent on its specific capacity and efficiency. Rehabilitation of 
wells attempt to restore some lost capacity and efficiency, but there are instances 
where continued rehabilitation has diminishing returns. It is instances like this that 
would create the need to install a new well prior to the anticipated end of life of the 
asset. District staff estimates the cost of a new deep well to be approximately $6.5 
million. 
 
Since the District is funding its capital projects on a pay-as-you-go basis at an 
average of $1.6 million annually without transfers from excess reserves, a major 
capital project of this sort would result in an increase to the capital budget in the year 
the asset is required. This increase would need to be funded with either an increase 
in water rates to cover the cost of the major capital asset, transfers from reserves to 
cover the cost of the major capital asset or the issuance of debt. Of the three options 
available, the ability to transfer from reserves the necessary funding to cover such 
projects would provide the most flexibility in managing the District’s finances. 
 
2.  Managing reserves by deferring annual water rate adjustments to control 
the level of reserves. The District has two (2) bond issuances outstanding totaling 
$37,610,000 as of June 30, 2021. The 2014 and 2016 Water Revenue Refunding 
Bonds have coinciding maturity dates of September 1, 2032. Both bond issuances 
contain covenants that no optional redemption is allowed until after September 1, 
2024 and a covenant requiring adjusted net revenues (operating revenues less 

26



November 16, 2021 
 
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT RESERVE AND CAPITAL 
INVESTMENT POLICY              
Page 5 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

operating expenses) equal to 1.15 times the sum of annual debt service payment. 
Failure to comply with this rate covenant shall cause the District to retain an 
Independent Financial Consultant to undertake a rate study for the purpose of 
establishing a rate structure which will enable the District to comply with the rate 
covenant during the succeeding fiscal year. Failure to meet the rate covenant at the 
end of the succeeding fiscal year shall constitute a default with all outstanding 
amounts becoming due immediately.  
 
Based on the District’s 2018 Water Rate Study, which recommended water rate 
increases of 0%, 0%, 3%, 3% and 3% for the years 2019 – 2023, the District was 
able to defer the 3% water rate increase in 2021 and 2022 by minimizing cost 
increases and utilizing reserves where appropriate, while maintaining compliance 
with bond rate covenants. Maintaining compliance with the District’s bond rate 
covenant has become more difficult year over year as expenses inflate due to cost 
of goods and services while water rates remain unchanged. By not implementing the 
recommended water rate increases, the District could fall out of compliance with bond 
rate covenants once the continued escalation of operating expenses exceed the 
water rate revenues being generated. 
 
3. Manage reserve levels by increasing the Operating Reserve from 120 days 
of O&M to 180 days. The District’s Policy established an Operating Reserve Fund 
that is funded based on 120 days of O&M. Although the level of operating reserves 
differ from agency to agency dependent on each agencies financial position, to have 
at least 120 days of reserves is considered financially stable. Increasing operating 
reserves from 120 days of O&M to 180 days would demonstrate increased financial 
stability of the District but will also reduce the amount of unallocated unrestricted net 
position available to be allocated to the future capital improvements and future capital 
replacement reserves that will be needed for major capital projects, such as a new 
well. 
 
4. Establishing a Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund. Although the District does not 
have a formal “Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund”, the District has been managing 
water rates and reserve levels to minimize, or defer in whole, the water rate increases 
recommended and approved by the 2018 Water Rate Study. The deferral of water 
rate increases was possible due to prudent fiscal management, cost control, and 
transfers from reserves to balance the budget in years where expenses exceed 
revenues. 

 

27



November 16, 2021 
 
FLORIN RESOURCE CONSERVATION DISTRICT RESERVE AND CAPITAL 
INVESTMENT POLICY              
Page 6 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

Based on the analysis and considerations above, staff is recommending that the District’s 
Policy and the management of District reserve levels remain unchanged. The District’s 
current policy provides the flexibility for management to prudently manage District’s 
reserve levels. It allows management to plan for major future capital projects and ensure 
sufficiency of funding levels while managing the District’s annual revenue requirements 
to minimize rate increases and ensuring compliance with bond rate covenants. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
This item conforms to the FRCD/EGWD’s 2020-25 Strategic Plan. Maintaining reliable 
financial resources to meet the ongoing needs of the District with the ability to withstand 
emergencies aligns with the Fiscal Responsibility goal in the Strategic Plan. 
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
There is no financial impact with this report. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
PATRICK LEE 
FINANCE MANAGER/TREASURER 
   
Attachment      

28



F
lo

ri
n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 

C
o
n
se

rv
a
ti

o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

R
e
se

rv
e
 a

n
d
 C

a
p
it

a
l 
In

v
e
st

m
e
n
t 

P
o
li
c
y

29



R
e
se

rv
e
 a

n
d
 C

a
p
it

a
l 
In

v
e
st

m
e
n
t 

P
o
li
c
y


U

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 n

e
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 1
 o

f 
e

a
c
h
 f

is
c
a
l 
y
e
a
r 

is
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
:


1
) 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 -

1
2
0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 O

&
M

e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s


2
) 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 -

u
p
c
o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r’

s
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
 b

u
d
g
e
t


3
) 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 -

u
p
c
o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r’

s
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
 b

u
d
g
e
t


4
) 

E
le

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

tu
d

ie
s
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d
 -

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n

t 
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t


5
) 

T
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 u

n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 u

n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 n

e
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 F

u
tu

re
 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 R
e

s
e

rv
e

 F
u
n

d
 a

n
d

 F
u
tu

re
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 R
e

s
e

rv
e

 

F
u
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

a
ti
o
 o

f 
2
5
:7

5
, 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

30



U
n
re

st
ri

c
te

d
 N

e
t 

P
o
si

ti
o
n

31



D
is

tr
ic

t 
R
e
se

rv
e
 A

ll
o
c
a
ti

o
n
s


P

e
r

th
e

D
is

tr
ic

t’
s

P
o
lic

y,
th

e
u
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
n
e
t

p
o
s
it
io

n
w

a
s

a
llo

c
a
te

d
to

re
s
e

rv
e
s

fo
r

fi
s
c
a

l
y
e
a
r

(F
Y

)
2
0
2
1
-2

2
a
s

fo
llo

w
s
:


O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

(1
2

0
d
a
y
s

o
f

O
&

M
b

u
d

g
e

t)
$

4
,8

3
1

,0
5

8
*


F

Y
2

0
2

1
-2

2
C

a
p
it
a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

R
e
s
e
rv

e
$

3
,0

2
5

,0
0

0
*


F

Y
2
0
2
1
-2

2
C

a
p

it
a

l
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t
R

e
s
e

rv
e

$
2
,0

3
0
,0

0
0

*


E
le

c
ti
o
n
s

a
n

d
S

p
e
c
ia

l
S

tu
d

ie
s

R
e
s
e
rv

e
$

-
*


F

u
tu

re
C

a
p
it
a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

R
e
s
e
rv

e
$

6
,9

4
0

,0
6

8


F
u
tu

re
C

a
p
it
a
l
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

R
e
s
e
rv

e
$

2
,3

1
3

,3
5

6
$

1
9

,1
3

9
,4

8
2

*
O

f 
th

e
 $

1
9
.1

 m
il
li
o
n
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t’

s 
re

se
rv

e
s,

 $
9
,8

8
6
,0

5
8
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

“
e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
”
, 

le
a
v
in

g
 a

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 o

f 
$
9
,2

5
3
,4

2
4
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

a
p
it

a
l 

p
ro

je
c
ts

.

32



C
IP

 F
u
n
d
in

g

 $
-

 $
5
0
0
,0

0
0

 $
1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
1
,5

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
2
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
2
,5

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
3
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
3
,5

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
4
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
4
,5

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
5
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

 $
5
,5

0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
8

2
0
1
9

2
0
2
0

2
0
2
1

2
0
2
2

A
n
n
u
a
l 
C
IP

 S
p
e
n
d
in

g
 v

s.
 B

u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
te

d
A
c
tu

a
l

A
v
e
ra

g
e

•
D

is
tr

ic
t 

is
 a

v
e
ra

g
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 $

1
.6

 m
il
li
o
n
 a

n
n
u
a
ll
y
 o

n
 C

IP
 o

n
 p

a
y
-a

s-
y
o
u
-

g
o
 b

a
si

s

•
5
,0

0
0
 l
in

e
a
r 

fe
e
t/

y
e
a
r 

@
 $

2
3
8
/
li
n
e
a
r 

fo
o
t 

=
 $

1
.2

 m
il
li
o
n
 a

n
n
u
a
ll
y

•
2
7
5
,6

1
6
 l
in

e
a
r 

fe
e
t 

o
f 

A
C
 p

ip
e
 w

it
h
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 u

se
fu

l 
li
fe

 o
f 

7
5
 y

e
a
rs

•
A
t 

5
,0

0
0
 l
in

e
a
r 

fe
e
t 

a
n
n
u
a
ll
y,

 s
ta

ff
 w

il
l 
b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 a

ll
 A

C
 p

ip
e
 i
n
 5

5
 

y
e
a
rs

, 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 u

se
fu

l 
li
fe

.

33



C
o
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s

1
.

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 b

y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 A

s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

.

1
.

E
n

s
u

re
 e

n
o

u
g

h
 f
u

tu
re

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
re

s
e

rv
e

s
 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 (
o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 
w

a
te

r 
m

a
in

 
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

).

2
.

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 b

y
 d

e
fe

rr
in

g
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
w

a
te

r 
ra

te
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
re

s
e
rv

e
s

1
.

B
o

n
d

 c
o

v
e

n
a

n
t 
ra

ti
o

–
1

.1
5

%

3
.

M
a

n
a

g
e

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

 f
ro

m
 1

2
0

 d
a

y
s
 o

f 
O

&
M

to
 1

8
0

 d
a

y
s

1
.

N
o
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 t
o

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

u
n

re
s
tr

ic
te

d
 n

e
t 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

llo
c
a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

s
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

.

4
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 R
a

te
 S

ta
b

ili
z
a

ti
o

n
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

 F
u

n
d

1
.

R
e
d

u
c
e

s
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

34



C
o
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 #

1

1
.

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 b

y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 a

n
d
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

.

1
.

E
n
s
u
re

 e
n
o
u
g
h
 f

u
tu

re
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 f

u
n
d
 m

a
jo

r 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 (
o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 

m
a

in
 r

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
re

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

).

2
.

N
e
w

 D
e
e
p
 W

e
ll 

~
 $

6
.5

 m
ill

io
n

35



C
o
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 #

2

1
.

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 b

y
 d

e
fe

rr
in

g
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
w

a
te

r 
ra

te
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
th

e
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

re
s
e
rv

e
s

1
.

N
o
 o

p
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

d
e
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 u

n
ti
l 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

1
, 

2
0
2
4
 o

n
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t’
s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 b

o
n
d
s

2
.

B
o
n
d

 c
o
v
e
n
a
n
t 
ra

ti
o

–
1

.1
5

%

36



C
o
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 #

3

1
.

M
a
n
a
g
e
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 b
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 f

ro
m

 1
2
0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 

O
&

M
to

 1
8
0
 d

a
y
s

1
.

N
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
u
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 n

e
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

llo
c
a
b
le

 t
o
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
s
 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

.

2
.

In
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n

t 
o
f 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 (
$
9
,2

5
3
,4

2
4
 v

s
. 

$
6
,8

3
7
,8

9
5
)

12
0 

D
ay

s
18

0 
D

ay
s

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

R
e

se
rv

e
s

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 4
,8

31
,0

58
 

7,
24

6,
58

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

FY
 2

02
1-

22
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 
R

e
se

rv
e

   
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
,0

25
,0

00
 

3,
02

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

FY
 2

02
1-

22
 C

ap
it

al
 R

e
p

la
ce

m
e

n
t 

R
e

se
rv

e
   

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,0
30

,0
00

 
2,

03
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

El
e

ct
io

n
s 

an
d

 S
p

e
ci

al
 S

tu
d

ie
s 

R
e

se
rv

e
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Fu
tu

re
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 R

e
se

rv
e

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
,9

40
,0

68
 

5,
12

8,
42

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

Fu
tu

re
 C

ap
it

al
 R

e
p

la
ce

m
e

n
ts

 R
e

se
rv

e
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,3
13

,3
56

 
1,

70
9,

47
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 $
   

   
   

   
 1

9,
13

9,
48

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
9,

13
9,

48
2 

37



C
o
n
si

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 #

4

1
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 R
a
te

 S
ta

b
ili

z
a
ti
o
n
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 F

u
n
d

1
.

R
e
d
u
c
e
s
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

2
.

R
a
te

 i
n
c
re

a
se

s 
a
n
d
 r

e
se

rv
e
 l

e
v
e
ls

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

 a
lr

e
a
d
y


J
a
n
u
a
ry

 1
, 

2
0
1
9
 –

0
%


J
a
n
u
a
ry

 1
, 

2
0
2
0
 –

0
%


J
a
n
u
a
ry

 1
, 

2
0
2
1
 –

3
%
 -

d
e
fe

rr
e
d


J
a
n
u
a
ry

 1
, 

2
0
2
2
 –

3
%
 -

d
e
fe

rr
e
d


J
a
n
u
a
ry

 1
, 

2
0
2
3
 –

3
%
 -

??
?

38



R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti

o
n


R
e
se

rv
e
 P

o
li
c
y
 r

e
m

a
in

s 
u
n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d


R
e
se

rv
e
 l

e
v
e
ls

 c
o
n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 

c
a
p
it

a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts


R
a
te

 i
n
c
re

a
se

s 
c
o
n
ti

n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
ll
y
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

d
e
b
t 

c
o
v
e
n
a
n
t 

ra
ti

o
s 

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti

o
n
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

39



AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

 
November 16, 2021 

 
 

TO:        Chair and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 
FROM:         Bruce Kamilos, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is presented to the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Directors for 
information, discussion, and in some instances, to provide direction to staff.  
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The General Manager’s Report is a standing item on the regular board meeting agenda. The 
report is intended to inform the Florin Resource Conservation District (FRCD) Board of 
Directors (Board) of notable, miscellaneous items the General Manager would like to share 
with the Board. The report also provides an opportunity for the Board to discuss the items, and 
in some instances provide direction to staff. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
Each month, the General Manager provides a report to the Board of any notable, miscellaneous 
items. 
 
Present Situation 
 
▪ American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds Update – Staff has been pursuing participation 

in ARPA funds received by the City of Elk Grove and the County of Sacramento. Staff will 
provide an update. 
 

▪ Cybersecurity Water Threats – Chair Sophia Scherman, Vice Chair Tom Nelson the 
District’s I.T. consultant, Thomas Dainat, and I attended a Regional Water Authority 
presentation by the FBI and Cal-OES on cybersecurity attacks against the water and 
wastewater industry. 

 
▪ Dickens Street Faire – The Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) will participate in the Dickens 

Street Faire on November 27, 2021, between 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. in Old Town Elk Grove. 
 

40



              November 16, 2021 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT        ____ 
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 5 

▪ California Water Arrearage Payment Program – On October 6, 2021, the EGWD submitted 
its application to the State Water Board outlining EGWD’s total arrearages and lost revenue 
for the allowed period (3/4/2020 – 6/15/2021). EGWD’s application submittal included a 
Disbursement Request Form for the purpose of receiving requested funds in the amount of 
$246,619.49 from the State Water Board. On November 1, 2021, EGWD received 
confirmation from the State Water Board that its application was complete.  EGWD expects 
to receive reimbursement in full. 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
This item conforms to the FRCD/EGWD 2020-2025 Strategic Plan. Due to the varied subject 
matters presented in the General Manager’s Report, the report over time will likely touch on 
every strategic goal contained in the plan. 
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this report. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
BRUCE KAMILOS 
GENERAL MANAGER 

41



AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

November 16, 2021 
  
 
TO:  Chair and Directors of the Florin Resource Conservation District 
 

FROM:  Bruce Kamilos, General Manager 
 

SUBJECT: ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORT – OCTOBER 2021 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
This item is presented for information only. No action by the Florin Resource Conservation 
District Board of Directors is proposed at this time.  
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The Elk Grove Water District (EGWD) Operations Report is a standing item on the regular 
board meeting agenda. 
 
All regulatory requirements were met for the month of October. Other notable events are 
described below. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background 
 
Every month, staff presents an update of the activities related to the operations of the 
EGWD. Included for the Florin Resource Conservation District Board of Director’s review 
is the EGWD’s October 2021 Operations Report. 
 
Present Situation 
 
The EGWD October 2021 Operations Report highlights are as follows: 
 

• Operations Activities Summary – No door hangers were placed for past due 
balances. The district is currently suspending all shut offs due to emergency 
Executive Order N-42-20 which prohibits the discontinuation of water service to 
residences and businesses. We received three (3) water pressure complaints and 
three (3) water quality complaints. Upon inspection, all water complaints were 
unsubstantiated. 
 

• Production – The Combined Total Service Area 1 production graph on page 13 
shows that production during the month of October decreased 18.2 percent 
compared to October 2020 and is 21.1 percent less than what was produced in 

42



  November 16, 2021 
 
ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORT – OCTOBER 2021   
Page 2 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

2013. Year 2013 is the baseline year the State Water Resources Control Board 
adopted for water usage. The Total Demand/Production for both service areas on 
page 14 shows that customer use during the month of October, compared to 
October 2013, was down by 12.2 percent.  
 

• Static and Pumping Level Graphs – The third quarter soundings are shown and 
generally indicate that the static water levels are stable compared to the third 
quarter of 2020. 
 

• Treatment (Compliance Reporting) – All samples taken during the month comply 
with all regulatory permit requirements. No exceedances of any maximum 
contaminant levels were found, and all water supplied to EGWD’s customers met 
or exceeded safe drinking water standards. 

  
• Corrective Maintenance Program – The tables included in this section of the 

report also include certain activities completed to date. Below is a list of out-of-
ordinary maintenance work completed in October: 

 
o Performance analyses by a consultant were conducted on several filter 

vessels regarding the effectiveness of the filtration media. Staff prepared 
the filter vessels and assisted with the assessments.  

o Staff performed water quality sampling and sand content testing at Well 
11D Dino in efforts to determine the cause of some operational issues. The 
well pump was removed from the casing for further assessment and to 
make a video report of the well downhole. Staff assisted where necessary.  

 

• Cross Connection Control Program 2021 – EGWD issued 54 testing notices for 
the month. Pursuant to the notices, 49 devices passed. Of the 5 remaining, 3 of 
the devices passed the second test and two (2) were not tested by the due date. 
The total number of delinquents is two (2).  
 

• Safety Meetings/Training – Two (2) safety training sessions were conducted for 
the month which is compliant with OSHA standards. 

 

• Service and Main Leaks Map – There was three (3) service line leaks and no 
main line leaks during October. 

 

• System Pressures – Pressures in Service Area 1 generally remained stable 
during the month of October.  Pressures in Service Area 2, which are controlled by 

43



  November 16, 2021 
 
ELK GROVE WATER DISTRICT OPERATIONS REPORT – OCTOBER 2021   
Page 3 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM No. 6 

Sacramento County Water Agency, were also stable as compared to the previous 
month. 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
There are no direct environmental considerations associated with this report. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN CONFORMITY 
 
This item conforms to the FRCD/EGWD 2020-2025 Strategic Plan. The EGWD 
Operations Report provides an ongoing review of EGWD’s operations, and therefore, 
conforms with Strategic Goal No. 1, Governance and Customer Engagement.  
 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this report. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
 
BRUCE KAMILOS 
GENERAL MANAGER 
 
BMK/ac 
 
Attachment 
 
 

44



EGWD 
Elk 
Grove  
Water  
District 

OPERATIONS REPORT 

October 2021

45



Elk Grove Water District 
Operations Report 

Table of Contents 

1. Operations Activities Summary .....................................................................................................3 

a. Door Hangers and Shut Off Tags ........................................................................................4 

2. Production 

a. Active Well Sites & Intertie Connections Map ......................................................................5 
b. Monthly Production Graphs 

i. Well 1D School Street .................................................................................... 6 
ii. Well 4D Webb Street ..................................................................................... 7 
iii. Well 11D Dino ................................................................................................ 8 
iv. Well 14D Railroad .......................................................................................... 9 
v. Well 8 Williamson ........................................................................................ 10 
vi. Well 9 Polhemus .......................................................................................... 11 
vii. Well 13 Hampton ......................................................................................... 12 

c. Combined Total Production ............................................................................................... 13 
d. Total Demand/Production .................................................................................................. 14 
e. EGWD Water Usage ......................................................................................................... 15 
f. EGWD Combined R-GPCD ........................................................................... …………….16 

3. Static and Pumping Level Graphs 

a. Well 1D School Street ....................................................................................................... 17 
b. Well 4D Webb Street ......................................................................................................... 18 
c. Well 11D Dino ................................................................................................................... 19 
d. Well 14D Railroad ............................................................................................................. 20 
e. Well 8 Williamson .............................................................................................................. 21 
f. Well 9 Polhemus ............................................................................................................... 22 
g. Well 13 Hampton ............................................................................................................... 23 

4. Regulatory Compliance 

a. Monthly Water Sample Report .................................................................................... 24-28 
b. Wastewater Discharge Compliance Report Form ....................................................... 29-30 
c. Monthly Summary of Distribution System Coliform Monitoring.................................... 31-32 
d. Monthly Summary of the Hampton Groundwater Treatment Plant .............................. 33-34 
e. Monthly Fluoridation Monitoring Report……………………………………………………35-36 

5. Preventative Maintenance Program 

a. Ground Water Wells .......................................................................................................... 37 
b. Railroad Water Treatment and Storage Facility ................................................................. 38 
c. Hampton Village Water Treatment Plant ........................................................................... 39 
d. Standby Generators .......................................................................................................... 40 

6. Cross Connection Control Program 2021 ................................................................................... 41 

7. Safety Meetings/Training .............................................................................................................. 42 

8. Service and Main Leaks Map ........................................................................................................ 43 

9. Sample Station Areas Map ........................................................................................................... 44 

46



Operations Activities Summary 
 
 
 

 

Service Requests: 

Department 

October -21 
 

Service Request 

 
 

Hours 

YTD (Since Jan. 1, 
 

  Service Request 

2021) 
 

Hours 

Distribution 

Door Hangers 

 
    0 

 
0 

 
   0 

 
 0 

Shut offs     0 0    0 0 

Turn ons     0 0    4 1 

Investigations     32 8    348  87 

USA Locates              281 70.25    3,252  813 

Customer Complaints     

-Pressure     3       1.5   22       11 

-Water Quality     3       1.5   32     16 

-Other     0 0   0 0 

 

Work Orders:    October -21 YTD (Since Jan. 1, 2021) 
 

 Department     Work Orders       Hours       Work Orders       Hours 
 

Treatment: 

Preventative Maint. 22       55    236 562.5 

Corrective Maint. 4       33                  65 459 

Water Samples 20 43.5    167 422.5 
 

Distribution: 

Meters Installed 

 

 

1 

 

 

 0.5 

 

 

7 

 

 

9.25 

Meter Change Out                22     12.5 

 

               233 137 

Preventative Maint.     

-Hydrant Maintenance (140) 137       36               1,677 300.25 

-Valve Exercising (127) 176 34               1,593      294 

-Other 0 0                  0 0 

Corrective Maint.  

-Leaks 3  34.5                 41 537.75 

-Other 2      1.25                 48 219 

Valve Locates 0 0                  0 0 
 

Utility: 

Corrective Maint. 

 

 

0 

 

 

       0 

 

 

                 0 

 

 

0 
 

3 47



El
k 

G
ro

ve
 W

at
er

 D
ist

ric
t

   
   

   
Do

or
 H

an
ge

rs
 a

nd
 S

hu
t O

ff 
Ta

gs

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

De
c

20
18

 D
oo

r H
an

ge
rs

90
5

30
5

40
3

42
2

46
2

44
4

59
0

55
7

68
8

80
6

64
1

0
20

18
 S

hu
t O

ffs
94

38
46

59
61

43
64

62
81

11
6

55
0

20
19

 D
oo

r H
an

ge
rs

67
8

36
0

34
0

42
6

41
5

36
3

57
2

49
5

67
1

71
6

67
5

0
20

19
 S

hu
t O

ffs
64

54
40

60
47

36
56

47
71

72
0

0
20

20
 D

oo
r H

an
ge

rs
47

6
39

4
33

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

20
20

 S
hu

t O
ffs

60
45

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

20
21

 D
oo

r H
an

ge
rs

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

20
21

 S
hu

t O
ffs

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

10
0

20
0

30
0

40
0

50
0

60
0

70
0

80
0

90
0

10
00

Tag Count

Do
or

Ha
ng

er
s

Sh
ut

 O
ffs

4 48



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! !
! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! !

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

&%

@A

@A

@A

@A

@A

@A

9
8

4D

1D

13

11D
14D

Active Well Sites &
Intertie Connections Elk Grove Water District

0 2,500 5,0001,250 Feet

Legend
@A Intertie Connections
&% Active Well Site

!

! !

!

!!

Service Area 1 .
5 49



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

5
,4

9
4

,8
9

9
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:
1

,6
5

9

P
u

m
p

 d
e

p
th

:
2

7
5

ft

W
e

ll
 d

e
p

th
:

1
0

2
5

ft

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

0

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

9
0

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

1
1

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
7

7

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
2

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
7

7

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
2

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
7

4

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
2

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

:
9

6
.5

F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

5
5

.2
0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

7
,2

0
0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.6

2
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.3
8

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.2
4

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
5

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

4
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

D
 S

ch
o

o
l 

--
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

1

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

6 50



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

2
5

,6
5

2
,2

0
4

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:
1

7
0

2

P
u

m
p

 d
e

p
th

:
3

4
0

ft

W
e

ll
 d

e
p

th
:

1
0

7
5

ft

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

9

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
6

7
3

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
7

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

2
0

2

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

2
0

1

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

2
0

1

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

:
1

3
5

.8
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

2
5

1
.2

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

3
7

,4
4

0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.5

9
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.3
8

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.2
1

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
5

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

1
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 4

D
 W

e
b

b
 -

- 
O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

1

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

7 51



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

8
8

3
,9

8
5

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:
1

7
1

3

P
u

m
p

 d
e

p
th

:
3

4
0

ft

W
e

ll
 d

e
p

th
:

1
0

3
8

ft

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

--

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

8
1

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
7

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
9

4

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
9

4

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
8

7

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
2

2
5

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

:
8

9
.7

F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

8
.6

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

3
,4

8
0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.6

m
g

/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.6
7

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
0

.9
3

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
5

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

1
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

1
D

 D
in

o
 -

- 
O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

1

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

8 52



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

5
2

,3
6

7
,6

7
8

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:
1

4
4

3

P
u

m
p

 d
e

p
th

:
3

4
0

ft

W
e

ll
 d

e
p

th
:

1
0

5
1

ft

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

5

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

8
1

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
8

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
6

5

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
1

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
6

5

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
1

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
6

4

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
1

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

.:
1

1
7

.1
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

6
0

4
.7

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

1
3

5
,5

2
0

(K
W

H
 t

o
ta

l 
is

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

n
ti

re
 f

a
ci

li
ty

)

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.8

0
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.6
4

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.1
6

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
2

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

1
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

4
D

 R
a

il
ro

a
d

 -
- 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

2
1

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

9 53



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

1
4

,8
0

7
,9

4
6

G
a

ll
o

n
s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:
5

4
4

P
u

m
p

 d
e

p
th

:
1

5
0

ft

W
e

ll
 d

e
p

th
:

5
6

4
ft

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
6

0

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

A
m

p
s 

A
:

6
1

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

6
0

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

5
9

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

4
5

3
.7

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

1
8

,3
4

0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.3

2
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.3
m

g
/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.0
2

m
g

/L

W
e

ll
 8

 W
il

li
a

m
so

n
 -

- 
O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

1

(S
u

b
m

e
rs

ib
le

)

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

10 54



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

8
,6

1
6

,3
4

4
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:
4

9
0

P
u

m
p

 d
e

p
th

:
1

5
0

ft

W
e

ll
 d

e
p

th
:

5
5

6
ft

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

9

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

A
m

p
s 

A
:

5
8

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

B
:

5
8

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

A
m

p
s 

C
:

6
1

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
6

5

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

2
9

3
.0

0

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

1
1

,7
7

2

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

1
.4

7
m

g
/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
0

.3
2

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.1
5

m
g

/L

W
e

ll
 9

 P
o

lh
e

m
u

s 
--

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

2
1

(S
u

b
m

e
rs

ib
le

)

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

11 55



S
e

le
ct

e
d

 M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n

6
,8

9
4

,4
2

4
G

a
ll

o
n

s

A
ve

ra
g

e
 G

P
M

:
9

3
0

P
u

m
p

 d
e

p
th

:
2

0
0

ft

W
e

ll
 d

e
p

th
:

5
0

0
ft

M
o

to
r:

V
o

lt
s:

4
7

9

V
o

lt
s 

(R
a

te
d

):
4

6
0

R
P

M
:

1
7

8
6

R
P

M
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

7
8

5

A
m

p
s 

A
:

1
0

4

A
m

p
s 

A
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

4
1

A
m

p
s 

B
:

1
0

5

A
m

p
s 

B
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

4
1

A
m

p
s 

C
:

1
0

6

A
m

p
s 

C
 (

R
a

te
d

):
1

4
1

M
o

to
r 

T
e

m
p

.:
1

0
9

.5
F

H
o

u
r 

M
e

te
r:

1
2

3
.5

K
W

 H
o

u
r 

T
o

ta
l:

9
,6

6
0

C
h

lo
ri

n
e

:

D
o

si
n

g
:

2
.1

m
g

/L

D
e

m
a

n
d

:
1

.0
3

m
g

/L

R
e

si
d

u
a

l:
1

.0
7

m
g

/L

V
ib

ra
ti

o
n

 R
e

a
d

in
g

:

B
a

se
 L

in
e

:
0

.0
2

in
/s

e
c

C
u

rr
e

n
t:

0
.0

1
in

/s
e

c

W
e

ll
 1

3
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 -

- 
O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
2

1

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0

0

G
a

ll
o

n
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

La
st

 Y
e

a
r

12 56



C
u

rr
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
:

1
1

4
,7

1
7

,4
8

0
G

a
ll

o
n

s

H
ig

h
e

st
 D

a
y

 D
e

m
a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 M
o

n
th

:

*
In

 A
u

g
. 

2
0

2
0

, 
a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
1

8
 m

il
li
o

n
 g

a
ll
o

n
s 

o
f 

w
a

te
r 

w
a

s
5

,0
6

3
,3

5
1

 p
u

rc
h

a
se

d
 f

ro
m

 S
a

cr
a

m
e

n
to

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
te

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

 a
s 

a
 

 r
e

su
lt

 o
f 

th
e

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 r

e
p

a
ir

 o
f 

th
e

 3
6

" 
tr

a
n

sm
is

si
o

n
 m

a
in

.
H

ig
h

e
st

 D
a

y
 D

e
m

a
n

d
 o

f 

th
e

 C
a

le
n

d
e

r 
Y

e
a

r:

6
,2

9
2

,9
8

1

"
W

a
te

r 
Y

e
a

r"
 R

a
in

fa
ll

: 
(O

ct
-2

1
 t

o
 S

e
p

-2
2

)

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

M
o

n
th

:
6

.7
1

in

Y
e

a
r 

T
o

 D
a

te
:

6
.7

1
in

"
W

a
te

r 
Y

e
a

r"
 R

a
in

fa
ll

: 
(O

ct
-2

0
 t

o
 S

e
p

-2
1

)

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

2
0

0
.0

0
in

Y
e

a
r 

T
o

 D
a

te
:

6
.6

1
in

E
n

ti
re

 Y
e

a
r 

T
o

ta
l:

6
.6

1
in

T
e

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

:

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 H

ig
h

9
0

F

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 L

o
w

4
0

F

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
6

2
.1

5
F

O
C

T
-2

0
 H

ig
h

 
9

6
F

O
C

T
-2

0
 L

o
w

 
4

1
F

O
C

T
-2

0
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
6

8
.8

F

D
a

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

ra
n

ce

O
ct

-2
0

2
1

5
-O

ct
-2

1

D
a

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

ra
n

ce

3
0

-J
u

l-
2

1

S
e

rv
ic

e
 A

re
a

 1

E
lk

 G
ro

v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

C
o

m
b

in
e

d
 T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

Million Gallons

0

5
0

1
0

0

1
5

0

2
0

0

2
5

0

Ja
n

F
e

b
M

a
r

A
p

r
M

a
y

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
u

g
S

e
p

O
ct

N
o

v
D

e
c

2
0

1
3

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

13 57

bkamilos
Text Box

AHewitt
Typewritten text
*



Cu
rr

en
t M

on
th

 D
em

an
d/

Pr
od

uc
tio

n:
19

9,
28

7,
10

8
G

al
lo

ns
Re

du
ct

io
n 

Fr
om

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3:
 1

2.
22

%
G

PC
D:

13
6.

9
G

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 D

ay
R-

G
PC

D:
   

   
   

   
 1

04
.8

G
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 D
ay

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

 1
 

Ac
tiv

e 
Co

nn
ec

tio
ns

: 
7,

98
4

   
   

 
Cu

rr
en

t M
on

th
 D

em
an

d/
Pr

od
uc

tio
n:

11
4,

71
7,

48
0

G
al

lo
ns

Re
du

ct
io

n 
Fr

om
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
3:

  2
1.

08
%

G
PC

D:
   

   
   

   
   

   
  1

28
.9

G
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 D
ay

R-
G

PC
D:

   
   

   
   

   
 9

8.
5

G
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 D
ay

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

 2
Ac

tiv
e 

Co
nn

ec
tio

ns
: 

4,
90

2
   

   
 

Cu
rr

en
t M

on
th

 D
em

an
d/

Pr
od

uc
tio

n:
84

,5
69

,6
28

 
G

al
lo

ns
Re

du
ct

io
n 

Fr
om

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3:
 -3

.5
6%

G
PC

D:
14

9.
6

G
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 D
ay

R-
G

PC
D:

   
   

   
   

   
11

4.
9

G
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 D
ay

O
ct

-2
02

1

El
k 

G
ro

ve
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
To

ta
l D

em
an

d/
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

40
0

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

De
c

Million Gallons

20
21

 S
A 

2

20
21

 S
A 

1

20
20

 S
A 

2

20
20

 S
A 

1

20
13

 S
A 

2

20
13

 S
A 

1

14
58



20
13

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

De
ce

m
be

r
GW

 (S
A1

)
68

,2
54

,9
16

81
,3

68
,1

91
10

0,
54

2,
52

2
12

1,
61

3,
52

3
17

2,
62

3,
83

9
19

6,
55

7,
13

7
22

1,
33

5,
38

8
20

5,
83

0,
85

0
16

6,
99

7,
53

6
14

5,
35

2,
53

0
10

7,
18

6,
45

9
80

,4
94

,1
67

Pu
rc

ha
se

d 
(S

A2
)

33
,7

69
,9

56
30

,9
29

,0
52

36
,9

42
,9

72
51

,9
11

,2
00

87
,4

70
,3

72
10

0,
70

9,
22

4
11

2,
12

8,
19

2
11

0,
88

5,
76

4
10

5,
41

7,
13

6
81

,6
65

,8
92

71
,5

05
,0

60
62

,1
65

,5
32

To
ta

l
10

2,
02

4,
87

2
11

2,
29

7,
24

3
13

7,
48

5,
49

4
17

3,
52

4,
72

3
26

0,
09

4,
21

1
29

7,
26

6,
36

1
33

3,
46

3,
58

0
31

6,
71

6,
61

4
27

2,
41

4,
67

2
22

7,
01

8,
42

2
17

8,
69

1,
51

9
14

2,
65

9,
69

9

20
18

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

De
ce

m
be

r
GW

 (S
A1

)
61

,5
47

,7
51

61
,5

58
,8

50
62

,8
48

,3
03

76
,2

67
,1

44
12

5,
70

3,
22

1
15

8,
31

3,
39

4
18

1,
46

7,
44

6
17

3,
73

7,
67

6
15

0,
60

9,
27

8
13

3,
16

3,
99

1
97

,2
94

,6
54

63
,6

31
,0

42
Pu

rc
ha

se
d 

(S
A2

)
31

,9
25

,3
88

31
,5

12
,4

92
33

,7
79

,6
80

32
,9

89
,7

92
52

,6
92

,8
60

85
,6

79
,6

60
10

1,
03

1,
61

2
10

4,
45

7,
45

2
97

,4
00

,0
72

77
,9

96
,2

04
66

,1
16

,4
68

42
,8

49
,1

80
To

ta
l

93
,4

73
,1

39
93

,0
71

,3
42

96
,6

27
,9

83
10

9,
25

6,
93

6
17

8,
39

6,
08

1
24

3,
99

3,
05

4
28

2,
49

9,
05

8
27

8,
19

5,
12

8
24

8,
00

9,
35

0
21

1,
16

0,
19

5
16

3,
41

1,
12

2
10

6,
48

0,
22

2

20
19

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

De
ce

m
be

r
GW

 (S
A1

)
58

,8
47

,0
01

50
,8

27
,4

97
59

,0
64

,3
85

81
,9

81
,7

28
11

4,
73

3,
50

2
15

3,
17

6,
82

6
17

5,
69

2,
82

3
17

9,
03

8,
97

9
15

1,
70

3,
90

6
13

4,
92

0,
71

9
10

5,
81

6,
16

8
62

,7
55

,9
85

Pu
rc

ha
se

d 
(S

A2
)

29
,8

95
,3

16
30

,3
59

,0
76

32
,4

85
,6

40
34

,9
94

,4
32

61
,8

02
,0

04
72

,6
57

,7
28

96
,5

24
,1

64
10

1,
81

8,
50

8
99

,5
90

,9
64

82
,8

97
,1

00
69

,7
04

,6
24

45
,1

61
,9

96
To

ta
l

88
,7

42
,3

17
81

,1
86

,5
73

91
,5

50
,0

25
11

6,
97

6,
16

0
17

6,
53

5,
50

6
22

5,
83

4,
55

4
27

2,
21

6,
98

7
28

0,
85

7,
48

7
25

1,
29

4,
87

0
21

7,
81

7,
81

9
17

5,
52

0,
79

2
10

7,
91

7,
98

1

20
20

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

De
ce

m
be

r
GW

 (S
A1

)
57

,9
04

,8
43

69
,9

20
,8

51
79

,1
95

,4
37

90
,8

51
,2

53
14

0,
57

5,
76

0
16

7,
94

2,
39

4
18

2,
96

4,
72

1
18

9,
80

1,
76

4
15

5,
12

6,
22

5
14

0,
22

9,
24

2
96

,2
01

,7
14

73
,6

24
,5

02
Pu

rc
ha

se
d 

(S
A2

)
31

,7
43

,6
24

32
,4

16
,0

76
44

,7
64

,8
08

39
,5

23
,5

72
77

,9
64

,7
88

87
,7

59
,8

48
10

4,
79

9,
28

8
10

8,
17

7,
25

6
10

2,
43

4,
86

0
87

,1
87

,6
28

70
,8

76
,7

40
45

,5
77

,1
36

To
ta

l
89

,6
48

,4
67

10
2,

33
6,

92
7

12
3,

96
0,

24
5

13
0,

37
4,

82
5

21
8,

54
0,

54
8

25
5,

70
2,

24
2

28
7,

76
4,

00
9

29
7,

97
9,

02
0

25
7,

56
1,

08
5

22
7,

41
6,

87
0

16
7,

07
8,

45
4

11
9,

20
1,

63
8

20
21

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

De
ce

m
be

r
GW

 (S
A1

)
64

,8
81

,3
78

57
,0

88
,4

52
78

,9
04

,9
98

12
2,

75
9,

41
5

16
1,

90
3,

48
9

17
1,

42
8,

10
3

18
0,

69
3,

08
3

17
3,

98
5,

02
5

15
3,

92
2,

30
9

11
4,

71
7,

48
0

Pu
rc

ha
se

d 
(S

A2
)

34
,5

53
,1

12
34

,8
67

,2
72

38
,2

68
,4

28
53

,1
56

,6
20

84
,7

25
,9

60
96

,5
21

,9
20

11
0,

86
2,

57
6

11
3,

08
1,

14
4

94
,9

77
,3

00
84

,5
69

,6
28

To
ta

l
99

,4
34

,4
90

91
,9

55
,7

24
11

7,
17

3,
42

6
17

5,
91

6,
03

5
24

6,
62

9,
44

9
26

7,
95

0,
02

3
29

1,
55

5,
65

9
28

7,
06

6,
16

9
24

8,
89

9,
60

9
19

9,
28

7,
10

8
0

0

*N
ot

es
20

13
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
an

d 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
nu

m
be

rs
 d

o 
no

t m
at

ch
 a

ct
ua

lly
 re

co
rd

ed
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 a
n 

op
en

 in
te

rt
ie

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

w
at

er
 to

 S
A2

.  
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
be

lo
w

 is
 fu

rt
he

r d
et

ai
ls.

SA
1 

= 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ar

ea
 1

, S
A2

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

2.
  S

A1
 is

 a
ll 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 (G
W

) p
ro

du
ct

io
n.

  S
A2

 is
 a

ll 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

w
at

er
 fr

om
 S

CW
A.

Ac
tu

al
 R

ec
or

de
d 

Pr
od

. (
Ja

n.
 2

01
3)

 - 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ar

ea
 1

 
79

,3
61

,3
42

ga
llo

ns
(In

cl
ud

es
 w

at
er

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 to

 S
A2

 d
ue

 to
 o

pe
n 

in
te

rt
ie

.  
In

te
rt

ie
 c

lo
se

d 
en

d 
of

 F
eb

. 2
01

3)
Ac

tu
al

 R
ec

or
de

d 
Pr

od
. (

Fe
b.

 2
01

3)
 - 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

 1
 

94
,6

08
,4

06
ga

llo
ns

(In
cl

ud
es

 w
at

er
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 to
 S

A2
 d

ue
 to

 o
pe

n 
in

te
rt

ie
.  

In
te

rt
ie

 c
lo

se
d 

en
d 

of
 F

eb
. 2

01
3)

To
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
es

tim
at

e 
of

 F
eb

. 2
01

3 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

1,
 u

se
 m

ul
tip

lie
r f

ro
m

 M
ar

ch
 d

at
a 

w
hi

ch
 is

 se
as

on
al

ly
 si

m
ila

r.)
1.

39
(c

al
cu

la
te

d 
fr

om
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
Pr

od
. D

at
a/

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

Pr
od

. D
at

a)
Ca

lc
'd

 F
eb

. 2
01

3 
Pr

od
. =

 F
eb

. 2
01

4 
Pr

od
. D

at
a 

x 
1.

39
 =

79
,7

37
,9

24
To

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

es
tim

at
e 

of
 Ja

n.
 2

01
3 

pr
od

uc
tio

n,
 u

se
 p

ro
ra

te
d 

am
ou

nt
 fr

om
 F

eb
. 2

01
3 

da
ta

.  
(T

hi
s m

et
ho

d 
du

e 
to

 Ja
n.

 2
01

4 
be

in
g 

un
se

as
on

ab
ly

 h
ot

.)
20

20
 A

ug
us

t p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

nu
m

be
r f

or
 S

A1
 in

cl
ud

es
 w

at
er

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
op

en
 in

te
rt

ie
s w

ith
 S

A2
.

SA
1 

= 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ar

ea
 1

, S
A2

 =
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a 

2.
  S

A1
 is

 a
ll 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 (G
W

) p
ro

du
ct

io
n.

  S
A2

 is
 a

ll 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

w
at

er
 fr

om
 S

CW
A.

Ch
ar

lo
is 

an
d 

Sp
rin

gh
ur

st
 In

te
rt

ie
18

,0
00

,0
00

   
   

   
Ga

llo
ns

Ch
ar

lo
is 

In
te

rt
ie

 (A
ug

 2
02

0)
8,

70
6,

52
9

   
   

   
  

Ga
llo

ns
(D

et
er

m
in

ed
 fr

om
 B

ru
ce

 K
am

ilo
s c

al
cu

la
tio

ns
)

Sp
rin

gh
ur

st
 In

te
rt

ie
 (A

ug
 2

02
0)

14
,5

11
,0

00
Ga

llo
ns

(N
um

be
r p

ro
vi

de
d 

fr
om

 m
et

er
 re

ad
 b

y 
SC

W
A)

20
21

# 
Ac

ct
s

CC
F

Ga
llo

ns
Ja

n
4,

90
0

46
,1

94
34

,5
53

,1
12

Fe
b

4,
90

1
46

,6
14

34
,8

67
,2

72
M

ar
4,

90
1

51
,1

61
38

,2
68

,4
28

Ap
r

4,
90

1
71

,0
65

53
,1

56
,6

20
M

ay
4,

90
1

11
3,

27
0

84
,7

25
,9

60
Ju

n
4,

90
1

12
9,

04
0

96
,5

21
,9

20
Ju

l
4,

90
1

14
8,

21
2

11
0,

86
2,

57
6

Au
g

4,
90

2
15

1,
17

8
11

3,
08

1,
14

4
Se

p
4,

90
2

12
6,

97
5

94
,9

77
,3

00
O

ct
4,

90
2

11
3,

06
1

84
,5

69
,6

28
N

ov
0

De
c

0

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

 1
 M

ul
tip

lie
r =

Co
ns

um
pt

io
n

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
-- 

M
on

th
ly

 P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

(g
al

lo
ns

) -
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

El
k 

Gr
ov

e 
W

at
er

 D
ist

ric
t W

at
er

 U
sa

ge

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

 2

*
*

*

15 59



Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

De
ce

m
be

r
20

13
64

78
85

10
9

15
1

18
0

18
2

18
0

16
1

13
4

11
0

89
20

17
53

53
56

64
11

4
14

1
15

5
15

4
14

2
11

9
80

60
20

18
58

62
59

68
10

6
13

8
15

8
15

2
13

5
11

7
95

60
20

19
52

55
56

73
10

4
12

7
15

4
15

4
14

1
12

0
99

61
20

20
54

65
71

78
12

7
14

7
15

8
16

0
14

3
12

5
93

67
20

21
59

60
70

10
6

13
3

14
7

15
4

14
7

13
4

10
5

025507510
0

12
5

15
0

17
5

20
0

R-GPCD

EG
W

D
 C

O
M

B
IN

ED
 R

-G
PC

D
20

13
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
20

21

R-
GP

CD
= 

Re
sid

en
tia

l G
al

lo
ns

 p
er

 C
ap

ita
 p

er
 D

ay

16 60



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

9
7

.5
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
1

7
8

.5
F

t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

8
1

F
t

G
P

M
:

1
,6

9
3

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
2

0
.8

9
6

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

D
 S

ch
o

o
l 

S
t 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-8
3

.5
-8

2

-9
4

.5
-9

7
.5

-1
6

9
.2

5
-1

6
9

.5
-1

7
6

.7
5

-1
7

8
.5

-2
0

0

-1
8

0

-1
6

0

-1
4

0

-1
2

0

-1
0

0

-8
0

-6
0

-4
0

-2
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

2
1

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-8
8

.5
-7

9
.5

-7
8

.5

-1
0

4
.5

-9
3

.5
-8

3
.5

-8
2

-9
4

.5
-9

7
.5

-1
7

4
.5

-1
6

7
-1

6
8

.5
-1

8
1

-1
7

8
.2

5
-1

6
9

.5
-1

6
9

-1
7

6
.7

5
-1

7
8

.5

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

17 61



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

1
3

7
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
2

4
4

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
0

7
F

t

G
P

M
:

1
,6

9
9

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

5
.8

7
8

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 4

D
 W

e
b

b
 S

t

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-1
1

1
.5

-1
1

5
.7

5

-1
4

0
.2

5
-1

3
7

-2
2

1
.2

5
-2

2
3

-2
4

7
.2

5
-2

4
4

-3
0

0

-2
5

0

-2
0

0

-1
5

0

-1
0

0

-5
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

2
1

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-1
2

7
.5

-1
0

4
.5

-1
0

4

-1
3

7
.5

-1
2

9
.7

5
-1

1
1

.5
-1

1
5

.7
5

-1
4

0
.2

5
-1

3
7

-2
1

0
.5

-2
0

2
-2

0
6

-2
3

8
-2

3
1

-2
2

1
.2

5
-2

2
3

-2
4

7
.2

5
-2

4
4

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

18 62



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

1
3

3
.5

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
2

5
3

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
1

9
.5

F
t

G
P

M
:

1
,6

7
0

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

3
.9

7
4

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

1
D

 D
in

o

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-1
0

7
.5

-1
0

1
.9

-1
3

3
.5

-1
9

7
-2

0
6

-2
5

3

-3
0

0

-2
5

0

-2
0

0

-1
5

0

-1
0

0

-5
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

2
1

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-1
2

3

-9
9

.5

-1
3

3
-1

2
4

.5
-1

0
7

.5
-1

0
1

.9

-1
3

3
.5

-2
5

2

-2
0

8
-2

2
5

.5
-2

1
6

-1
9

7
-2

0
6

-2
5

3

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

19 63



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

1
3

0
.2

5
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
2

4
9

.7
5

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
1

9
.5

F
t

G
P

M
:

1
,4

0
2

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
1

1
.7

3
5

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

4
D

 R
a

il
ro

a
d

 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-1
0

4
.5

-1
0

4
.7

5

-1
3

3
-1

3
0

.2
5

-2
8

1
-2

7
3

.7
5

-2
5

8
-2

4
9

.7
5

-3
0

0

-2
5

0

-2
0

0

-1
5

0

-1
0

0

-5
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

2
1

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-1
1

7
.7

5
-1

0
1

.5
-9

6

-1
1

9
.7

5
-1

2
3

.7
5

-1
0

4
.5

-1
0

4
.7

5

-1
3

3
-1

3
0

.2
5

-2
2

4
-2

2
6

-2
3

8
.5

-2
7

2
-2

9
5

-2
8

1
-2

7
3

.7
5

-2
5

8
-2

4
9

.7
5

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

20 64



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

6
9

.5
F

t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
7

8
.5

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

9
F

t

G
P

M
:

5
4

3

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
6

0
.3

2
6

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 8

 W
il

li
a

m
so

n
 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-6
3

.7
5

-6
3

.2
5

-6
4

.7
5

-6
9

.5
-7

3
-7

4
-7

4
.2

5
-7

8
.5

-1
0

0

-8
0

-6
0

-4
0

-2
00

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

2
1

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-6
5

-6
2

.7
5

-6
5

.2
5

-6
7

.5
-6

9

-6
3

.7
5

-6
5

.2
5

-6
4

.7
5

-6
9

.5

-7
4

-7
1

.7
5

-7
3

.5

-7
6

.2
5

-7
7

.5

-7
3

-7
4

-7
4

.2
5

-7
8

.5

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

21 65



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

7
2

.7
5

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
8

7
F

t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
4

.2
5

F
t

G
P

M
:

4
8

3

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
3

3
.9

0
6

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 9

 P
o

lh
e

m
u

s 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-6
9

.5
-6

8
.7

5
-7

2
.2

5
-7

2
.7

5

-8
3

-8
2

-8
6

-8
7

-1
0

0

-7
5

-5
0

-2
50

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

2
1

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
0

.5
-6

9
-6

8
-7

1
.5

-7
2

.7
5

-6
9

.5
-6

8
.7

5
-7

2
.2

5
-7

2
.7

5

-8
3

.7
5

-8
2

.2
5

-8
1

.2
5

-8
5

-8
6

.2
5

-8
3

-8
2

-8
6

-8
7

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

22 66



La
te

st
 W

e
ll

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g

S
ta

ti
c:

8
0

.2
5

F
t

P
u

m
p

in
g

:
9

6
.5

F
t

FEET

D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
:

1
6

.2
5

F
t

G
P

M
:

9
2

8

S
p

e
ci

fi
c 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:
5

7
.1

1
2

La
te

st
 S

a
n

d
 T

e
st

e
r 

R
e

su
lt

s:

1
5

 M
in

:
<

 5
p

p
m

FEET

W
e

ll
 1

3
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 

 S
o

u
n

d
in

g
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r/
Y

e
a

r

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t

S
ta

ti
c 

a
n

d
 P

u
m

p
in

g
 L

e
v

e
ls

-7
2

.5
-7

1

-8
2

.5
-8

0
.2

5

-9
0

-8
8

.7
5

-9
8

.5
-9

6
.5

-1
2

5

-1
0

0

-7
5

-5
0

-2
50

1
st

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
2

n
d

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1
3

rd
 Q

tr
. 

2
0

2
1

4
th

 Q
tr

. 
2

0
2

1

S
ta

ti
c

P
u

m
p

in
g

-7
8

.5

-7
0

.2
5

-6
8

.5

-7
7

.5
-8

0

-7
2

.5
-7

1

-8
2

.5
-8

0
.2

5

-9
5

-8
7

.5
-8

5
.7

5

-9
2

.5

-9
7

-9
0

-8
8

.7
5

-9
8

.5
-9

6
.5

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

1
9

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
0

1
S

T
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

2
N

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

3
R

D
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

4
T

H
 Q

T
R

. 

2
0

2
1

23 67



Hi
st

or
ic

 S
ta

tic
 W

el
l L

ev
el

s

-1
15

.5
-1

17

-1
45

-1
33

-1
16

-1
22

-1
44

-1
14

-1
06

-1
26

-1
41

-1
34

-1
21

-1
11

-1
30

-1
39

-1
14

-1
25

-1
33

-1
28

.5

-1
16

-1
36

-1
22

-1
14

-1
10

-1
41

-1
36

-1
05

-1
02

-1
27

.5
-1

27

-1
10

-1
03

-1
28

.5-
12

7.
5-1

04
.5

-1
04

-1
37

.5-1
29

.7
5-1

11
.5 -1

15
.7

5 -1
40

.2
-1

36
-1

38
.7

5-1
37

-1
27

.7
5

1ST QTR. 2011

2ND QTR. 2011

3RD QTR. 2011

4TH QTR. 2011

1ST QTR.2012

2ND QTR. 2012

3RD QTR. 2012

4TH QTR. 2012

1ST QTR.   2013

2ND QTR. 2013

3RD QTR. 2013

4TH QTR. 2013

1ST QTR. 2014

2ND QTR. 2014

3RD QTR. 2014

4TH QTR. 2014

1ST QTR. 2015

2ND QTR.2015

3RD QTR. 2015

4TH QTR. 2015

1ST QTR. 2016

2ND QTR. 2016

3RD QTR. 2016

4TH QTR. 2016

1ST QTR. 2017

2ND QTR. 2017

3RD QTR. 2017

4TH QTR. 2017

1ST QTR. 2018

2ND QTR. 2018

3RD QTR. 2018

4TH QTR. 2018

1ST QTR. 2019

2ND QTR. 2019

3RD QTR. 2019

4TH QTR. 2019

1ST QTR. 2020

2ND QTR. 2020

3RD QTR. 2020

4TH QTR. 2020

1ST QTR. 2021

2ND QTR. 2021

3RD QTR. 2021

AUG-21

SEP-21

OCT-21

NOV-21

W
el

l 4
D

-9
4

-9
1

-1
20

-1
04

-1
00

-1
16

-1
15

-8
9

-9
2

-1
06

-1
10

-9
5

-9
1

-1
01

-1
01

-9
3

-9
7

-1
05

-1
01

-9
3

-9
2

-1
02

-1
03

-9
6

-8
8

-9
2

-8
6

-8
4

-8
6

-8
9

-8
1

-8
0

-8
6

-8
8.

5-7
9.

5-7
8.

5 -1
04

.5-9
3.

5-8
3.

5
-8

2

-9
4.

5 -1
03

.7
5-9

9
-9

7.
5-9

4.
75

1ST QTR. 2011

2ND QTR. 2011

3RD QTR. 2011

4TH QTR. 2011

1ST QTR.2012

2ND QTR. 2012

3RD QTR. 2012

4TH QTR. 2012

1ST QTR.   2013

2ND QTR. 2013

3RD QTR. 2013

4TH QTR. 2013

1ST QTR. 2014

2ND QTR. 2014

3RD QTR. 2014

4TH QTR. 2014

1ST QTR. 2015

2ND QTR.2015

3RD QTR. 2015

4TH QTR. 2015

1ST QTR. 2016

2ND QTR. 2016

3RD QTR. 2016

4TH QTR. 2016

1ST QTR. 2017

2ND QTR. 2017

3RD QTR. 2017

4TH QTR. 2017

1ST QTR. 2018

2ND QTR. 2018

3RD QTR. 2018

4TH QTR. 2018

1ST QTR. 2019

2ND QTR. 2019

3RD QTR. 2019

4TH QTR. 2019

1ST QTR. 2020

2ND QTR. 2020

3RD QTR. 2020

4TH QTR. 2020

1ST QTR. 2021

2ND QTR. 2021

3RD QTR. 2021

AUG-21

SEP-21

OCT-21

NOV-21

W
el

l 1
D 24

68



-1
08

.5
-1

11

-1
36

-1
24

-1
10

-1
26

-1
09

-1
06

-1
14

-1
26

-1
26

-1
10

-1
04

-1
30

-1
32

-1
05

-1
15

-1
22

-1
14

-1
04

-1
06

-1
25

.2
5-1

19

-1
05

-1
18

-1
30

-1
25

-9
9

-9
9

-1
19

-1
16

-1
03

-9
7

-1
19

.5-1
17

.7
5-1

01
.5

-9
6 -1

19
.7

5 -1
23

.7
5-1

04
.5 -1

04
.7

5 -1
33

-1
28

-1
31

-1
30

.2
5-1
19

.7
5

1ST QTR. 2011

2ND QTR. 2011

3RD QTR. 2011

4TH QTR. 2011

1ST QTR.2012

2ND QTR. 2012

3RD QTR. 2012

4TH QTR. 2012

1ST QTR.   2013

2ND QTR. 2013

3RD QTR. 2013

4TH QTR. 2013

1ST QTR. 2014

2ND QTR. 2014

3RD QTR. 2014

4TH QTR. 2014

1ST QTR. 2015

2ND QTR.2015

3RD QTR. 2015

4TH QTR. 2015

1ST QTR. 2016

2ND QTR. 2016

3RD QTR. 2016

4TH QTR. 2016

1ST QTR. 2017

2ND QTR. 2017

3RD QTR. 2017

4TH QTR. 2017

1ST QTR. 2018

2ND QTR. 2018

3RD QTR. 2018

4TH QTR. 2018

1ST QTR. 2019

2ND QTR. 2019

3RD QTR. 2019

4TH QTR. 2019

1ST QTR. 2020

2ND QTR. 2020

3RD QTR. 2020

4TH QTR. 2020

1ST QTR. 2021

2ND QTR. 2021

3RD QTR. 2021

AUG-21

SEP-21

OCT-21

NOV-21

W
el

l 1
4D

-1
20

-1
27

-1
48

-1
36

-1
23

-1
40

-1
53

-1
19

-1
33

-1
30

-1
15

-1
08

-1
34

.5
-1

34

-1
08

-1
16

-1
26

-1
21

-1
05

-1
32

-1
25

-1
10

-1
06

.2
5 -1

34
-1

33

-1
00

-1
00

-1
23

-1
20

-1
03

-1
02

-1
23

.7
5-1

23

-9
9.

5

-1
33

-1
24

.5-1
07

.5-1
01

.5 -1
33

.5-1
32

.7
5 -1

34
.5-1

29
.5

1ST QTR. 2011

2ND QTR. 2011

3RD QTR. 2011

4TH QTR. 2011

1ST QTR.2012

2ND QTR. 2012

3RD QTR. 2012

4TH QTR. 2012

1ST QTR.   2013

2ND QTR. 2013

3RD QTR. 2013

4TH QTR. 2013

1ST QTR. 2014

2ND QTR. 2014

3RD QTR. 2014

4TH QTR. 2014

1ST QTR. 2015

2ND QTR.2015

3RD QTR. 2015

4TH QTR. 2015

1ST QTR. 2016

2ND QTR. 2016

3RD QTR. 2016

4TH QTR. 2016

1ST QTR. 2017

2ND QTR. 2017

3RD QTR. 2017

4TH QTR. 2017

1ST QTR. 2018

2ND QTR. 2018

3RD QTR. 2018

4TH QTR. 2018

1ST QTR. 2019

2ND QTR. 2019

3RD QTR. 2019

4TH QTR. 2019

1ST QTR. 2020

2ND QTR. 2020

3RD QTR. 2020

4TH QTR. 2020

1ST QTR. 2021

2ND QTR. 2021

3RD QTR. 2021

AUG-21

SEP-21

OCT-21

NOV-21

W
el

l 1
1D 25

69



-7
6

-7
5

-7
5

-7
5

-7
2

-7
9

-7
9

-7
5

-7
8

-8
0

-7
9

-7
3

-7
7.

5

-7
3

-7
4

-7
3

-7
3

-7
4.

5

-7
3

-7
2

-8
0.

5-7
6.

75

-7
3

-7
0.

75
-7

0

-7
3

-6
8.

25

-6
5.

5
-6

5.
5

-6
5

-6
2.

75

-6
5.

25

-6
7.

5

-6
9

-6
3.

75

-6
5.

25
-6

4.
75

-6
5.

75
-6

6

-6
9.

5

-6
6.

5

1ST QTR. 2011

2ND QTR. 2011

3RD QTR. 2011

4TH QTR. 2011

1ST QTR.2012

2ND QTR. 2012

3RD QTR. 2012

4TH QTR. 2012

1ST QTR.   2013

2ND QTR. 2013

3RD QTR. 2013

4TH QTR. 2013

1ST QTR. 2014

2ND QTR. 2014

3RD QTR. 2014

4TH QTR. 2014

1ST QTR. 2015

2ND QTR.2015

3RD QTR. 2015

4TH QTR. 2015

1ST QTR. 2016

2ND QTR. 2016

3RD QTR. 2016

4TH QTR. 2016

1ST QTR. 2017

2ND QTR. 2017

3RD QTR. 2017

4TH QTR. 2017

1ST QTR. 2018

2ND QTR. 2018

3RD QTR. 2018

4TH QTR. 2018

1ST QTR. 2019

2ND QTR. 2019

3RD QTR. 2019

4TH QTR. 2019

1ST QTR. 2020

2ND QTR. 2020

3RD QTR. 2020

4TH QTR. 2020

1ST QTR. 2021

2ND QTR. 2021

3RD QTR. 2021

AUG-21

SEP-21

OCT-21

NOV-21

W
el

l 8

-8
2

-8
0

-8
2

-8
1

-7
8

-8
3.

5

-7
8

-7
9

-8
3

-8
4

-7
9

-7
9

-8
2.

5
-8

3

-8
0

-7
8

-8
1

-8
0

-7
8

-8
0

-8
2

-8
4.

25

-7
9

-7
7.

25
-7

8
-7

9

-7
5

-7
3

-7
5

-7
6.

5

-7
4

-7
0

-7
0.

75
-7

0.
5

-6
9

-6
8

-7
1.

5 -7
2.

75

-6
9.

5-6
8.

75

-7
2.

25
-7

3.
5

-7
3

-7
2.

75

-7
4.

75

1ST QTR. 2011

2ND QTR. 2011

3RD QTR. 2011

4TH QTR. 2011

1ST QTR.2012

2ND QTR. 2012

3RD QTR. 2012

4TH QTR. 2012

1ST QTR.   2013

2ND QTR. 2013

3RD QTR. 2013

4TH QTR. 2013

1ST QTR. 2014

2ND QTR. 2014

3RD QTR. 2014

4TH QTR. 2014

1ST QTR. 2015

2ND QTR.2015

3RD QTR. 2015

4TH QTR. 2015

1ST QTR. 2016

2ND QTR. 2016

3RD QTR. 2016

4TH QTR. 2016

1ST QTR. 2017

2ND QTR. 2017

3RD QTR. 2017

4TH QTR. 2017

1ST QTR. 2018

2ND QTR. 2018

3RD QTR. 2018

4TH QTR. 2018

1ST QTR. 2019

2ND QTR. 2019

3RD QTR. 2019

4TH QTR. 2019

1ST QTR. 2020

2ND QTR. 2020

3RD QTR. 2020

4TH QTR. 2020

1ST QTR. 2021

2ND QTR. 2021

3RD QTR. 2021

AUG-21

SEP-21

OCT-21

NOV-21

W
el

l 9 26

70



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
TT

H
M

's
 a

nd
 H

AA
5

Q
ua

rte
rly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/2

6/
20

21
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- B
ac

te
rio

lo
gi

ca
l

Q
ua

rte
rly

10
/2

6/
20

21
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- F
e,

M
n,

As
 T

ot
al

Q
ua

rte
rly

10
/2

6/
20

21
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
Tr

es
ho

ld
 O

do
r

Q
ua

rte
rly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

M
o

n
th

ly
 S

a
m

p
le

 R
e

p
o

rt
  

- 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
2

1

W
a

te
r 

S
y
s

te
m

: 
E

lk
 G

ro
v
e

 W
a

te
r 

S
y
s

te
m

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

1
 -

 8
6
9
3
 W

. 
C

a
m

d
e
n

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
W

e
ll
 0

1
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

2
 -

 9
4
2
5
 E

m
e
ra

ld
 V

is
ta

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

3
 -

 8
8
0
9
 V

a
ll
e
y
 O

a
k

27 71



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- B
ac

te
rio

lo
gi

ca
l

Q
ua

rte
rly

10
/5

/2
02

1
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- F
e,

M
n,

As
 T

ot
al

Q
ua

rte
rly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
TT

H
M

's
 a

nd
 H

AA
5

Q
ua

rte
rly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
W

e
b

b
 W

e
ll
 0

4
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

4
 -

 1
0
1
2
2
 G

la
c
ie

r 
P

o
in

t

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

5
 -

 9
2
3
0
 A

m
s
d

e
n

 C
t.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

6
 -

 9
2
2
7
 R

a
n

c
h

o
 D

r.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

7
 -

 A
l 
G

a
te

s
 P

a
rk

 M
a
in

li
n

e
 D

r.
 

28 72



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- B
ac

te
rio

lo
gi

ca
l

Q
ua

rte
rly

10
/5

/2
02

1
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- F
e,

M
n,

As
 T

ot
al

Q
ua

rte
rly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Fl

uo
rid

e
M

on
th

ly
10

/5
/2

02
1

D
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

Sy
st

em
 

TT
H

M
's

 a
nd

 H
AA

5
Q

ua
rte

rly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/2

6/
20

21
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- B
ac

te
rio

lo
gi

ca
l

Q
ua

rte
rly

10
/2

6/
20

21
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- F
e,

M
n,

As
 T

ot
al

Q
ua

rte
rly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

2/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/1

9/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

10
/2

6/
20

21
D

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
Sy

st
em

 
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
W

ee
k

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
- 

W
il
li
a
m

s
o

n
 W

e
ll
 8

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

8
 -

 9
4
3
6
 H

o
ll
o

w
 S

p
ri

n
g

s
 W

y
.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
 P

o
lh

e
m

u
s
 W

e
ll
 9

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 0

9
 -

 8
4
1
7
 B

la
c
k
m

a
n

 W
y
.

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 1

0
 -

 9
3
7
3
 O

re
o

 R
a
n

c
h

 C
ir

.

29 73



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/2

6/
20

21
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- F
e,

M
n,

AI
 T

ot
al

Q
ua

rte
rly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/4

/2
02

1
So

ur
ce

 W
at

er
Fe

, M
n,

 A
s,

 T
ot

al
W

ee
kl

y
10

/5
/2

02
1

So
ur

ce
  W

at
er

3 
m

o 
- B

ac
te

rio
lo

gi
ca

l
Q

ua
rte

rly
10

/1
3/

20
21

So
ur

ce
 W

at
er

Fe
, M

n,
 A

s,
 T

ot
al

W
ee

kl
y

10
/1

8/
20

21
So

ur
ce

 W
at

er
Fe

, M
n,

 A
s,

 T
ot

al
W

ee
kl

y
10

/2
6/

20
21

So
ur

ce
 W

at
er

Fe
, M

n,
 A

s,
 T

ot
al

W
ee

kl
y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/4

/2
02

1
Tr

ea
te

d 
Ef

flu
en

t
Fe

, M
n,

 A
s,

 T
ot

al
W

ee
kl

y
10

/1
3/

20
21

Tr
ea

te
d 

Ef
flu

en
t

Fe
, M

n,
 A

s,
 T

ot
al

W
ee

kl
y

10
/1

8/
20

21
Tr

ea
te

d 
Ef

flu
en

t
Fe

, M
n,

 A
s,

 T
ot

al
W

ee
kl

y
10

/2
6/

20
21

Tr
ea

te
d 

Ef
flu

en
t

Fe
, M

n,
 A

s,
 T

ot
al

W
ee

kl
y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

Bi
an

nu
al

y

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- B
ac

te
rio

lo
gi

ca
l

Q
ua

rte
rly

10
/5

/2
02

1
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
3 

m
o 

- F
e,

M
n,

As
 T

ot
al

Q
ua

rte
rly

10
/5

/2
02

1
So

ur
ce

  W
at

er
Tr

es
ho

ld
 O

do
r

Q
ua

rte
rly

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/5

/2
02

1
Tr

ea
te

d 
Pl

an
t E

ffl
ue

nt
W

TP
 E

ff 
- F

e,
M

n,
As

,A
l T

ot
al

M
on

th
10

/5
/2

02
1

Tr
ea

te
d 

Pl
an

t E
ffl

ue
nt

Tr
es

ho
ld

 O
do

r
Q

ua
rte

rly

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
P

 E
ff

lu
e
n

t

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
D

in
o

 W
e
ll
 1

1
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

e
ll
 1

3
 -

 R
a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
H

a
m

p
to

n
 W

T
P

 B
a
c
k
w

a
s
h

 T
a
n

k

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
R

a
il
ro

a
d

 W
e
ll
 1

4
D

 -
 R

a
w

 W
a
te

r

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 R

a
il
ro

a
d

 W
T

P
 E

ff
lu

e
n

t

30 74



S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 O
c
c
u

rr
e
n

c
e

10
/1

9/
20

21
W

as
te

w
at

er
TS

S,
 F

e,
 M

n 
O

nc
e

S
a
m

p
le

 D
a
te

S
a
m

p
le

 C
la

s
s
 

S
a
m

p
le

 N
a
m

e
C

o
ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 

10
/5

/2
02

1
C

IP
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
El

k 
G

ro
ve

 F
lo

rin
 a

nd
 K

el
se

y 
M

ai
n 

Li
ne

 T
ie

 
In

10
/5

/2
02

1
C

IP
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
El

k 
G

ro
ve

 F
lo

rin
 a

nd
 K

el
se

y 
M

ai
n 

Li
ne

 T
ie

 
In

10
/5

/2
02

1
C

IP
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
El

k 
G

ro
ve

 F
lo

rin
 a

nd
 K

el
se

y 
M

ai
n 

Li
ne

 T
ie

 
In

10
/5

/2
02

1
C

IP
Ba

ct
er

io
lo

gi
ca

l
El

k 
G

ro
ve

 F
lo

rin
 a

nd
 K

el
se

y 
M

ai
n 

Li
ne

 T
ie

 
In

C
ol

or
s

M
on

th
ly

 T
ot

al
Ye

ar
ly

 T
ot

al
Bl

ac
k 

= 
Sc

he
du

le
d

69
6

1
7

G
re

en
 =

 U
ns

ch
ed

ul
ed

4
6

4

R
ed

 =
 In

co
m

pl
et

e 
Sa

m
pl

e
0

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
  
R

a
il
ro

a
d

 W
T

P
 B

a
c
k
w

a
s
h

 T
a
n

k

S
a
m

p
li
n

g
 P

o
in

t:
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
D

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
/C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 S
a
m

p
le

s
 

31 75



32 76



33 77



34 78



35 79



36 80



37 81



38 82



39 83



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

2
1

E
lk

 G
r
o

v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

G
ro

u
n

d
w

a
te

r 
W

e
ll

s

R
e

fe
r.

JA
N

F
E

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

JU
N

JU
L

A
U

G
S

E
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C
R

e
fe

r.
1

S
T

 6
-M

O
.

2
N

D
 6

-M
O

.
R

e
fe

r.
2

0
2

1

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

B
W

B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/6
/2

1
2

/2
6

/2
1

3
/4

/2
1

4
/8

/2
1

7
/2

8
/2

1
8

/1
1

/2
1

9
/9

/2
1

1
0

/2
5

/2
1

6
/2

4
/2

1
9

/1
5

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
4

4
1

9
4

0
4

1
9

4
5

9
1

9
5

8
4

1
9

6
6

4
1

9
7

5
8

1
9

8
6

5
1

9
9

2
2

2
0

0
1

2
2

0
1

0
9

1
9

7
6

5
1

9
5

0
6

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

A
H

B
W

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
4

/2
1

2
/2

2
/2

1
3

/2
/2

1
4

/7
/2

1
5

/1
1

/2
1

6
/7

/2
1

7
/2

/2
1

8
/2

/2
1

9
/9

/2
1

1
0

/4
/2

1
6

/9
/2

1
9

/1
6

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
4

5
1

9
4

0
5

1
9

4
6

0
1

9
5

8
5

1
9

6
6

5
1

9
7

5
9

1
9

8
6

6
1

9
9

2
3

2
0

0
1

3
2

0
1

1
0

1
9

7
6

6
1

9
5

0
7

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

B
W

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
3

/2
1

2
/2

2
/2

1
3

/2
/2

1
4

/6
/2

1
5

/7
/2

1
6

/7
/2

1
7

/6
/2

1
8

/4
/2

1
9

/1
4

/2
1

1
0

/2
6

/2
1

6
/9

/2
1

9
/1

4
/2

1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
4

6
1

9
4

0
6

1
9

4
6

1
1

9
5

8
6

1
9

6
6

6
1

9
7

5
9

1
9

8
6

7
1

9
9

2
4

2
0

0
1

4
2

0
1

1
1

1
9

7
6

7
1

9
5

0
8

In
it

ia
ls

B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

A
H

B
W

A
H

/B
W

B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/4
/2

1
2

/2
4

/2
1

3
/4

/2
1

4
/7

/2
1

5
/2

0
/2

1
6

/2
4

/2
1

7
/1

/2
1

8
/4

/2
1

9
/1

5
/2

1
1

0
/8

/2
1

6
/9

/2
1

9
/1

5
/2

1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
4

7
1

9
4

0
7

1
9

4
6

2
1

9
5

8
7

1
9

6
6

7
1

9
7

6
0

1
9

8
6

8
1

9
9

2
5

2
0

0
1

5
2

0
1

1
2

1
9

7
6

8
1

9
5

0
9

In
it

ia
ls

B
W

B
W

A
H

B
W

B
W

B
W

B
W

B
W

B
W

B
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
/2

1
2

/2
4

/2
1

3
/2

/2
1

4
/1

/2
1

5
/5

/2
1

6
/4

/2
1

7
/2

/2
1

8
/2

/2
1

9
/1

/2
1

1
0

/6
/2

1
9

/1
6

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
4

8
1

9
4

0
8

1
9

4
6

3
1

9
5

8
8

1
9

6
6

8
1

9
7

6
2

1
9

8
6

9
1

9
9

2
6

2
0

0
1

6
2

0
1

1
3

1
9

5
1

0

In
it

ia
ls

B
W

B
W

A
H

B
W

B
W

B
W

A
H

B
W

B
W

B
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
/2

1
2

/2
4

/2
1

3
/2

/2
1

4
/9

/2
1

5
/5

/2
1

6
/3

/2
1

7
/7

/2
1

8
/9

/2
1

9
/7

/2
1

1
0

/4
/2

1
9

/1
6

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
4

9
1

9
4

0
9

1
9

4
6

4
1

9
5

8
9

1
9

6
6

9
1

9
7

6
3

1
9

8
7

0
1

9
9

2
7

2
0

0
1

7
2

0
1

1
4

1
9

5
1

1

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
8

/2
1

2
/2

5
/2

1
3

/8
/2

1
4

/8
/2

1
5

/1
3

/2
1

6
/2

4
/2

1
7

/1
/2

1
8

/9
/2

1
9

/1
6

/2
1

1
0

/1
8

/2
1

6
/2

4
/2

1
9

/1
6

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

0
1

9
4

1
0

1
9

4
6

5
1

9
5

9
0

1
9

6
7

0
1

9
7

6
4

1
9

8
7

1
1

9
9

2
8

2
0

0
1

8
2

0
1

1
5

1
9

7
6

9
1

9
5

1
2

=
 W

e
ll

 R
e

h
a

b
.

Sect: 7.1

Sect: 7.2

Sect: 7.3

Well 4D 

Webb

Sect: 9.1

Sect: 9.2

Sect: 9.3

M
o

n
th

ly
S

e
m

i-
a

n
n

u
a

l
A

n
n

u
a

l

Well 8 

Williamson

Sect: 11.1

Sect: 11.4

Well 1D 

School

Sect: 13.1

Sect: 13.2

Sect: 13.3

Well 11D

Dino

Sect: 8.1

Sect: 8.2

Sect: 8.3

Well 14D 

Railroad

Sect: TBD

Well 13 

Hampton

Sect: TBD

Sect: TBD

Well 9 

Polhemus

Sect: TBD

Sect: TBD

40
84



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

2
1

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m

R
a

ir
o

a
d

 W
a

te
r 

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
to

ra
g

e
 F

a
ci

li
ty

It
e

m
R

e
fe

r.
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

R
e

fe
r.

1
st

2
n

d
3

rd
4

th
R

e
fe

r.
1

S
T

  
  

  
 6

-

M
O

.

2
N

D
  

  
  

 6
-

M
O

.
R

e
fe

r.
2

0
2

1

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
6

/2
1

2
/2

6
/2

1
3

/3
/2

1
4

/1
5

/2
1

5
/2

4
/2

1
6

/2
8

/2
1

7
/2

0
/2

1
8

/1
0

/2
1

9
/2

3
/2

1
1

0
/2

7
/2

1
2

/2
6

/2
1

6
/1

4
/2

1
8

/1
5

/2
1

6
/1

4
/2

1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

1
1

9
3

9
5

1
9

4
5

2
1

9
5

7
6

1
9

6
5

6
1

9
7

4
9

1
9

8
7

5
1

9
9

2
9

2
0

0
1

9
2

0
1

1
6

1
9

3
9

9
1

9
7

5
4

1
9

9
4

5
1

9
7

5
7

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

D
a

te
1

/3
0

/2
1

2
/2

4
/2

1
3

/3
/2

1
4

/1
5

/2
1

5
/6

/2
1

6
/2

1
/2

1
7

/1
4

/2
1

8
/2

4
/2

1
9

/2
0

/2
1

1
0

/2
5

/2
1

3
/1

7
/2

1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

2
1

9
3

9
6

1
9

4
5

3
1

9
5

7
7

1
9

6
5

7
1

9
7

5
0

1
9

8
7

6
1

9
9

3
0

2
0

0
2

0
2

0
1

1
7

1
9

4
6

6

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

B
W

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/3
0

/2
1

2
/2

5
/2

1
3

/4
/2

1
4

/1
5

/2
1

5
/2

4
/2

1
6

/2
8

/2
1

7
/2

1
/2

1
8

/1
1

/2
1

9
/2

3
/2

1
1

0
/2

5
/2

1
3

/1
6

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

3
1

9
3

9
7

1
9

4
5

4
1

9
5

7
8

1
9

6
5

8
1

9
7

5
1

1
9

8
7

7
1

9
9

3
1

2
0

0
2

1
2

0
1

1
8

1
9

4
9

8

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

B
W

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

D
a

te
1

/3
0

/2
1

2
/2

5
/2

1
3

/4
/2

1
4

/1
5

/2
1

5
/2

6
/2

1
6

/2
1

/2
1

7
/2

1
/2

1
8

/1
7

/2
1

9
/2

0
/2

1
1

0
/2

5
/2

1
6

/1
0

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

4
1

9
3

9
8

1
9

4
5

5
1

9
5

7
9

1
9

6
5

9
1

9
7

5
2

1
9

8
7

2
1

9
9

3
2

2
0

0
2

2
2

0
1

1
9

1
9

7
5

6

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

B
W

D
a

te
3

/2
2

/2
1

6
/2

9
/2

1
9

/2
3

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

4
9

9
1

9
7

7
9

2
0

0
2

3

In
it

ia
ls

D
a

te

W
.O

. 
#

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

/S
S

D
a

te
9

/1
5

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

2
0

0
3

0

M
o

n
th

ly
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

S
e

m
i-

a
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

Section: 

2.4

Section: 

1.1

Section: 

4.4

Section: 

3.2
Section: 2.3

Section: 

5.1

Section: 

5.2

Section: 

5.3

MCC

Section: 

1.2

Backwash 

Ssytem

Section:  

2.1

Section: 2.2

Filter 

System

Clor-Tec 

System

Section: 

4.2

Section: 

4.3

Booster 

Pumps

Section: 

3.1

Section: 

TBD

LAB
 Clear 

Wells

41
85



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

2
1

E
lk

 G
r
o
v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m

H
a

m
p

to
n

 V
il

la
g

e
 W

a
te

r 
T

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

P
la

n
t

It
e

m
R

e
fe

r.
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

R
e

fe
r.

1
st

2
n

d
3

rd
4

th
R

e
fe

r.
1

S
T

  
  

  
 6

-

M
O

.

2
N

D
  

  
  

 6
-

M
O

.
R

e
fe

r.
2

0
2

1

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
8

/2
1

2
/2

5
/2

1
3

/4
/2

1
4

/8
/2

1
5

/1
1

/2
1

6
/2

3
/2

1
7

/1
/2

1
8

/9
/2

1
9

/1
6

/2
1

1
0

/1
8

/2
1

3
/9

/2
1

6
/4

/2
1

9
/1

6
/2

1
1

0
/5

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

5
1

9
4

1
1

1
9

4
5

6
1

9
5

7
3

1
9

6
5

3
1

9
7

4
6

1
9

8
7

8
1

9
9

1
9

2
0

0
2

4
2

0
1

2
0

1
9

5
0

2
1

9
7

5
3

2
0

0
2

7
2

0
0

2
7

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
8

/2
1

2
/2

5
/2

1
3

/4
/2

1
4

/8
/2

1
5

/1
1

/2
1

6
/2

3
/2

1
7

/1
/2

1
8

/9
/2

1
9

/1
6

/2
1

1
0

/1
8

/2
1

3
/1

6
/2

1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

6
1

9
4

1
2

1
9

4
5

7
1

9
5

7
4

1
9

6
5

4
1

9
7

4
7

1
9

8
7

3
1

9
9

2
0

2
0

0
2

5
2

0
1

2
1

1
9

5
0

2

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/1
8

/2
1

2
/2

5
/2

1
3

/4
/2

1
4

/8
/2

1
5

/1
1

/2
1

6
/2

3
/2

1
7

/1
/2

1
8

/9
/2

1
9

/1
6

/2
1

1
0

/1
8

/2
1

3
/1

6
/2

1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

7
1

9
4

1
3

1
9

4
5

8
1

9
5

7
5

1
9

6
5

5
1

9
7

4
8

1
9

8
7

4
1

9
9

2
1

2
0

0
2

6
2

0
1

2
2

1
9

5
0

5

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

/B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
3

/9
/2

1
6

/4
/2

1
9

/8
/2

1
1

0
/5

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

5
0

3
1

9
7

5
5

2
0

0
2

8
2

0
1

2
3

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

D
a

te
9

/1
5

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

5
1

2

Section: 

TBD

MCCLAB

Section: 

TBD

Filter 

System

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Backwash 

Ssytem

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

M
o

n
th

ly
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

S
e

m
i-

a
n

n
u

a
l

A
n

n
u

a
l

Chemical 

Systems

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

42
86



Y
e

a
r:

 2
0

2
1

E
lk

 G
r
o

v
e
 W

a
te

r
 D

is
tr

ic
t

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 P
ro

g
ra

m

S
ta

n
d

b
y

 G
e

n
e

ra
to

rs

It
e

m
R

e
fe

r.
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

R
e

fe
r.

2
0

2
1

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

/B
W

A
H

/B
W

A
H

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

D
a

te
1

/3
1

/2
1

2
/2

6
/2

1
3

/4
/2

1
4

/1
9

/2
1

5
/2

6
/2

0
6

/2
9

/2
1

7
/2

0
/2

1
8

/2
5

/2
1

9
/1

3
/2

1
1

0
/5

/2
1

1
0

/5
/2

1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

8
1

9
4

0
0

1
9

4
4

8
1

9
5

8
0

1
9

6
6

0
1

9
7

7
0

1
9

8
6

1
1

9
9

3
3

2
0

0
0

8
2

0
1

2
4

1
9

8
9

3

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

B
W

A
H

B
W

B
W

B
W

B
W

D
a

te
1

/3
0

/2
1

2
/2

5
/2

1
3

/2
/2

1
4

/1
9

/2
1

5
/7

/2
1

6
/8

/2
1

7
/1

4
/2

1
8

/2
/2

1
9

/1
3

/2
1

1
0

/1
8

/2
1

7
/3

0
/2

1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
5

9
1

9
4

0
1

1
9

4
4

9
1

9
5

8
1

1
9

6
6

1
1

9
7

7
1

1
9

8
6

2
1

9
9

3
4

2
0

0
0

9
2

0
1

2
5

1
9

8
9

2

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

/B
W

B
W

B
W

B
W

A
H

D
a

te
1

/3
1

/2
1

2
/2

2
/2

1
3

/2
/2

1
4

/6
/2

1
7

/1
2

/2
1

8
/4

/2
1

9
/2

2
/2

1
1

0
/1

8
/2

1
7

/3
0

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
6

0
1

9
4

0
2

1
9

4
5

0
1

9
5

8
2

1
9

6
6

2
1

9
7

7
2

1
9

8
6

3
1

9
9

3
5

2
0

0
1

0
2

0
1

2
6

1
9

8
9

4

In
it

ia
ls

A
H

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

A
H

A
H

A
H

B
W

B
W

D
a

te
1

/3
1

/2
1

2
/2

5
/2

1
3

/4
/2

1
4

/2
8

/2
1

5
/2

7
/2

1
6

/6
/2

1
7

/3
1

/2
1

8
/2

5
/2

1
9

/2
2

/2
1

1
0

/1
8

/2
1

W
.O

. 
#

1
9

3
6

1
1

9
4

0
3

1
9

4
5

1
1

9
5

8
3

1
9

6
6

3
1

9
7

7
3

1
9

8
6

4
1

9
9

3
6

2
0

0
1

1
2

0
1

2
7

=
 L

o
a

d
 T

e
st

Section: 

TBD

Webb

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Dino

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

Admin.

M
o

n
th

ly
A

n
n

u
a

l

Railroad

Section: 

TBD

Section: 

TBD

43 87



JA
N

FE
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

SE
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
EC

To
ta

ls

4
7

4
0

8
3

2
1

6
1

7
2

1
5

0
9

9
8

5
5

4
7

1
2

2
5

1
4

6
9

1
2

2
6

2
9

9
7

4
7

7
0

4
9

4
3

8

2
2

2
6

1
4

9
3

5
4

3
5

3
5

2
1

5
5

2
7

4

0
0

0
1

1
0

3
1

1
0

7

2
2

2
6

1
4

8
3

4
4

3
5

0
5

1
1

4
5

2
6

7

2
2

2
6

1
4

8
3

4
4

3
5

0
5

1
1

4
5

2
6

7

3
1

2
7

0
5

2
5

1
4

1
9

7
3

9
5

1
9

1
4

7
8

2
9

1
8

3
6

3
2

7
2

1
7

2

1
7

1
4

7
7

2
9

1
5

3
5

1
7

0
1

3
2

0
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

2 2

D
ev

ic
es

 L
o

ck
ed

 O
ff

O
ct

ob
er

 th
ird

 n
ot

ic
e 

w
ill 

go
 o

ut
 o

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 1

0t
h 

To
ta

l O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

D
e

lin
q

u
en

ts

M
o

n
th

ly
 O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g 
D

el
in

q
u

en
ts

Th
ir

d
 T

es
t 

N
o

ti
ce

 Is
su

ed

P
as

se
d

 T
h

ir
d

 T
e

st
 N

o
ti

ce

P
as

se
d

 S
ec

o
n

d
 T

e
st

 N
o

ti
ce

El
k 

G
ro

ve
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

C
ro

ss
 C

o
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

l P
ro

gr
am

 2
0

2
1

Fi
rs

t 
Te

st
 N

o
ti

ce
s 

Is
su

ed

P
as

se
d

 F
ir

st
 T

e
st

 N
o

ti
ce

 

In
it

ia
l B

al
an

ce

N
o

ti
ce

s 
R

et
ra

ct
ed

N
e

w
 B

al
an

ce

Se
co

n
d

 T
e

st
 N

o
ti

ce
s 

Is
su

ed

44 88



Date Topic Attendees Hosted By

10/12/2021 Protect Your Hearing

Alan Aragon, Stefan Chanh, David 
Frederick, Jaylyn Gordon-Ford, Aaron 

Hewitt, James Hinegardner, Sean 
Hinton, Justin Mello, Jose Mendoza, Sal 

Mendoza, Michael Montiel, Chris 
Phillips, Steve Shaw, John Vance, 
Matthew Vargas, Brandon Wagner, 

Marcell Wilson

 Steve Shaw & 
Sean Hinton

10/25/2021 Working Safely In 
The Rain

Stefan Chanh, Jaylyn Gordon-Ford, 
David Frederick, Aaron Hewitt, Sean 
Hinton, Jose Mendoza, Sal Mendoza, 
Michael Montiel, Steve Shaw, John 
Vance, Matthew Vargas, Brandon 

Wagner, Marcell Wilson

 Steve Shaw & 
Sean Hinton

Elk Grove Water District
Safety Meetings/Training 

October 2021

45 89



^

^

^

^

^

^

^^ ^

^

^

^

^

^
^

^

^

^

^

^

! .

! .

! .

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Ci
ty

 o
f E

lk
 G

ro
ve

, C
ou

nt
y 

of
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, B

ur
ea

u 
of

 L
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
Es

ri,
 H

ER
E,

 G
ar

m
in

, I
N

CR
EM

EN
T 

P,
 In

te
rm

ap
, U

SG
S,

 M
ET

I/N
AS

A,
 E

PA
, U

SD
A

E
lk

 G
ro

ve
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t

0
2,

50
0

5,
00

0
F

ee
t

E
lk

 G
ro

ve
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
M

ai
n 

&
 S

er
vi

ce
 L

in
e 

Le
ak

s
C

re
at

ed
 b

y:
 B

en
 V

oe
lz

D
at

e:
 N

ov
em

be
r 

4,
 2

02
1

O
ct

ob
er

 2
02

1

M
ai

n 
Li

ne
 L

ea
ks

: 0
Y

T
D

:  
5

S
er

vi
ce

 L
in

e 
Le

ak
s:

 3
Y

T
D

:  
36

T o
ta

l L
ea

ks
:  

3
M

ai
n 

an
d 

S
er

vi
ce

 L
in

e 
Le

ak
s 

M
ap

Y
T

D
:  

41

M
ai

n 
Le

ak
s

_̂
O

ct
ob

er
 2

02
1

^
20

21

^
20

20
 (

8)

^
20

19
 (

5)

^
20

18
 (

3)

Se
rv

ic
e 

Le
ak

s
! .

O
ct

ob
er

 2
02

1

!
20

21

!
20

20
 (

30
)

!
20

19
 (

27
)

!
20

18
 (

30
)

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

 1

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ar
ea

 2

46

90



" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi

" Îi
S

S
A

5

S
S

A
8

S
S

A
6

S
S

A
7

S
S

A
4

S
S

A
3

S
S

A
2

S
S

A
9

S
S

A
1

S
S

A
10

Ci
ty

 o
f E

lk
 G

ro
ve

, C
ou

nt
y 

of
 S

ac
ra

m
en

to
, B

ur
ea

u 
of

 L
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
Es

ri,
 H

ER
E,

 G
ar

m
in

, I
N

CR
EM

EN
T 

P,
 In

te
rm

ap
, U

SG
S,

 M
ET

I/N
AS

A,
 E

PA
, U

SD
A

S
am

pl
e 

S
ta

tio
n 

A
re

as
N

ov
em

be
r 

4,
 2

02
1

L
eg

en
d

" Îi
S

am
pl

in
g 

S
ta

tio
n

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 1

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 2

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 3

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 4

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 5

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 6

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 7

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 8

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 9

S
a

m
p

le
 S

ta
tio

n
 A

re
a

 1
0

S
am

p
le

 S
ta

ti
o

n
s:

  1
0

0
3,

00
0

6,
00

0
1,

50
0

F
ee

t

E
lk

 G
ro

ve
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

S
ys

te
m

: N
A

D
 8

3 
S

ta
te

 P
la

ne
 C

A
 II

 F
IP

S
 0

40
2

S
ou

rc
e:

 E
G

W
D

 G
IS

 d
at

ab
as

e

M
od

ifi
ed

 b
y:

 B
en

 V
oe

lz

SS
A

 1
SS

A
 2

SS
A

 3
SS

A
 4

SS
A

 5
SS

A
 6

SS
A

 7
SS

A
 8

SS
A

 9
SS

A
 1

0

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

%
 o

f 
R

ea
d

in
gs

0
.0

8
%

1
.5

3
%

4
.9

9
%

0
.2

9
%

0
.0

1
%

0
.0

1
%

-
-

2
.4

9
%

8
9

.5
4

%

6
2

.3
5

%
9

0
.6

4
%

8
8

.2
8

%
7

3
.8

4
%

1
5

.3
5

%
9

.2
1

%
1

1
.2

5
%

1
.1

1
%

9
7

.3
7

%
1

0
.4

6
%

3
7

.3
5

%
7

.8
4

%
6

.7
2

%
2

5
.7

4
%

8
4

.0
2

%
8

8
.3

6
%

8
8

.7
%

9
8

.8
1

%
0

.1
%

-

0
.2

2
%

-
0

.0
1

%
0

.1
3

%
0

.6
3

%
2

.4
2

%
0

.0
1

%
0

.0
8

%
-

-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

4
0

 -
 4

9
.9

9

< 
4

0

Sa
m

p
le

 S
ta

ti
o

n

P
re

ss
u

re
 (

P
SI

)

> 
7

0

5
0

 -
 5

9
.9

9

6
0

 -
 6

9
.9

9

47

91


